HELLENIC PETROLEUM S.A.

Financial Statements
In accordance with IFRS for the

year ended 31 December 2014

&

HELLENIC
PETROLEUM

GENERAL COMMERCIAL REGISTRY: 000269901000
COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER: 2443/06/B/86/23
REGISTERED OFFICE:8CHIMARRAS STR, 15125 MAROUSSI, GREECE



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

Index to the financial statements

ComPAany INFOMMALION ........eeeiieiiie e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e r e e e e e aaaaaaaaaas 4
Statement Of FINANCIAI POSITION .........oiiii ettt e e e e 7
Statement of COMPrenNeNSIVE INCOME...........oimmm e e ettt 8
Statement of Changes IN EQUILY ........ouiiiiiieeeiee e 9
Statement Of CaSh fIOWS .......oooiiiii e 10
Notes to the financial StAtEMENLS ..........o o eeeeeeeennennnes 11
1 General INfOrMALION. ........uiiiiie ettt e s e sttt e e e e e st b e e e e e e annees 11
2 Summary of significant accounting POIICIES .....cceuiiiiiiiiiiiiiia e 12
2.1 BaSiS Of PrEPATAtION ......uetieiiiiiieiii e e ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaaaaaaaaas 12
2.2 Investments in affiliated COMPANIES.........cemmemiiiiiiiiiieee e 16
RS T 1= To 0 0 U= oL A =] o To 5 (1o T P PP PPUPTURPTT 16
2.4 Foreign CurrenCy translation .............uvieeeeeereeeeaiei i sccscie e e e e e e e e e e e e s se s eeeeees 17
2.5 Property, plant and @QUIPMENT ..........o o it 17
P2 T = o 1 € (0 1V g o o0 1) £ S 18
2.7 INtANGIDIE ASSEIS ... .uuiiiitiiiiiiieeeee et o et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e r e ———————————aaaaaaaaaaaaeaanaanann 18
2.8 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral RESOUICES............cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 19
2.9 Impairment of NON-fINANCIAI ASSELS ........iiccreee e e e e e e e e e 19
2.10 FiINANCIAI @SSELS ... o iiiiiii ittt ettt ettt ettt et e e e 2aaaeaaeaaeaaaaaaansseseeeeeaeaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaannns 20
2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging ati®g@...............cccveeeveeiiiiieeeeee i, 21
2.12 Government grants
PN S T 1 1Y 7=T | (o =TSP UUPT U PP RPN
2. 14 Trade rECEIVADIES ......ooii ittt et ettt e e et e e s sttt e e e e st e e e e e e nnnb b e e e e e ennneees
2.15 Cash and cash eqUIVAIENLES ..........ooi i 23
N I = T T o o1 - YR 23
% A A = o 1 (0 1V o LU UUURPURPTRR 23
2.18 Current and deferred INCOME TAX ......oiuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 23
2.19 EMPIOYEE DENETILS .oiiiiiiiiiee e e 24
2.20 Trade and other payables ... 25
P R o 0/ 11T L PP 25
2.22 Environmental 1abiliieS..........ooi i 25
A T = U=\ =T TU L= (= To o To | 11 T o P 26
2,24 LBASES ...ttt e et et e et e e e e e e e e e r e rr e e et e et e e aeaaeaaaas 26
2.25 Dividend diStrDULION .........eeiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e e e 27
2.26 Changes in acCoUNtiNg PONICIES.......ciii i cceeeeeieieeeeeee e e e e e e e e e 27
2.27 ComMPAratiVe fIQUIES.....cooiiiiii ittt e e e e e e e e bbbt eeeeeaaeas 27
3 Financial riSK ManagemMENT ...........uuuiuuueeimmmmereeeeereeererteeeeeeessesissasasnsnrrsrrrrrrereeeeeeessessnnanannnnsnnes 27
3.1 FiINaNCial FISK fACTOIS......oi i e e e e e e e e e e 27
3.2 Capital riSK MANAQEIMENT .......ccoiiiii i s ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e e s e aannebanbeebeeeeeees 31
3.3 Fair VaAlUE @StIMALION. ....cciiiiiiiiiiie et ceeee ettt e e e st e e e st b e e e e s sbbeeeeeeeane 32
4 Critical accounting estimates and JUAQEMENLS ........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 33

(2)/(62)



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

SY=To LT a1 AT {0] =i o ] o PSPPI 36
Property, plant and @QUIPMIENT .......... e et e e e e e e e e e e e s e e eeeeeaeaaaaeeas 37
T = T Lo ] o] (ST TISTCY £ 38
Investment in subsidiaries, associates and JOINt MEUIES ...........ccuvveeieeiiiiiiieee s mem e 39
Loans, Advances and LONG tEIM ASSELS.......uuiieeeeeeeiieiiiiiiiiiiniiiriree e e ereereeaeeseeessnnsnnnenenenneees 40
1)Y= 1 (0] 1= SR PTPRRT 41
Trade and Other reCEIVADIES ...ttt 41
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted CaSh ...ccceevviviiiiiiiiiii e 43
SNAIE CAPILAL ...ttt ettt et e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e aaabee et e eeeeeaaaaaaaaeeaaaeaaaaannnnaarares 43
RESBIVES ...ttt e e e 45
Trade and other PAYADIES ............ et e e e e e e e e e e e e 46
[ To] 10111V 1 TSP 46
D)2y (= g =To e [oo] o (L= = O O ORUPPRRT 49
Retirement benefit OblIgAtIONS .........oooii i 51
Provisions for other liabilities and Charges ....ccc...uvuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e 54
Other long term HabilitIes ... e e e e e e e e e e as 54
Derivative financial INSITUMENTS ..ot e e 54
[T 0] 0] V7= 1= I 01 £ RESEEERR 55
Exploration and developmeENt EXPENSES .........uuumuurrurrrmiieiiieiieeiaaaaaaaaaaeaasaaaasssseeeeeeeeaaaaaaaaans 55
Other operating income / (expenses) and other opdrag gains / (I0SSES)......uvvvveevieeeeeeeeecee 56
Finance (EXPenses)/ INCOME-NEL........ccoi ittt e e
Currency exchange gains / (losses)

INCOME X EXPEIISE ....ieiiiiieeeiit e et ettt s+ttt e e e e et ta e e e e et tab s e e e e eeb e e e e see b s e e e eebaa s e e e eetaaeeeeeennnnes
BArNiNgS PEI SNATE ... ettt e e e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e aaaaaaaeaaaaaens

[N Vo (=T [0 ESq 01T g g T TSR
DiIStriDULION Of FESEIVES ... .. ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e enanneenes
Cash generated from OPEratiONS ............uvuimmier i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aaaaaaes
Contingencies and lHIGAtION ........c.ueiiii et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annnnees
1070] 101101114 01=T 1 £ STPSSR
= 1Yo I 0 T= U (=SSR
Events after the end of the reporting Period.............ooo i 62

(3)/(62)



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

Company Information

Directors

loannis Papathanasiou — Chairman of the Board
John Costopoulos — Chief Executive Officer, Member
Theodoros-Achilleas Vardas —Member

Andreas Shiamishis —-Member

Vassilios Nikoletopoulos —Member

Panagiotis Ofthalmides —-Member

Theodoros Pantalakis —-Member

Spyridon Pantelias —Member

Konstantinos Papagiannopoulos —Member
Christos Razelos, Member

loannis Raptis, Member

loannis Sergopoulos —Member

Aggelos Chatzidimitriou, Member

John Costopoulos, Theodoros-Achilleas Vardas ardteéas Shiamishis are executive members of the board

Other Board Members
during the year

Registered Office:

Registration number:
General Commercial
Registry

Auditors:

Christos-Alexis Komninos — Chairman of the Boar@d/{2/2011 - 23/2/2014)

8A Chimarras Str.
15125 Maroussi, Greece

2443/06/B/86/23
000269901000
PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A.
268 Kifissias Ave.

152 32 Halandri
Athens, Greece

(4)/(62)



-

pwec

Independent auditor’s report
To the Shareholders of Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hellenic Petroleum S.A. (the “Company”)
which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December 2014 and the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of separate
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A., 268 Kifissias Ave., 152 32 Halandri, Athens, Greece
T: +30 210 6874700, F: +30 210 6874444, www.pwe.gr

260 Kifissias Avenue & Kodrou Str., 15232 Halandri, T: +30 210 6874400, F:+30 210 6874444
17 Ethnikis Antistassis Str., 55134 Thessaloniki, T: +30 2310 488880, F: +30 2310 459487
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Hellenic Petroleum S.A. as at December 31, 2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by
the European Union.

Reference on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

a) a) Included in the Board of Directors’ Report is the corporate governance statement that contains
the information that is required by paragraph 3d of article 43a of Codified Law 2190/1920.

b) b) We verified the conformity and consistency of the information given in the Board of Directors’

report with the accompanying financial statements in accordance with the requirements of articles
43a, and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

_L Athens, 26 February 2015

pwc The Certified Auditor Accountant

PricewaterhouseCoopers S.A.

SOEL Reg. No. 113
Konstantinos Michalatos

SOEL Reg.No. 17701
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Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

Non-current asset:

Property, plant and equipm:

Intangible asse

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and jentwes
Deferred income tax ass

Available-for-sale financial ass:

Loans, advances and long-term as

Current asset:

Inventorie:

Trade and other receivab

Derivative financial instrumer

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted

Total assets

EQUITY

Share capiti
Reserves
Retained Earnings
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Retirement benefit obligatio
Provisions for other liabilities and char
Other long term liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payab
Derivative financial instrumer
Current income tax liabilitie
Borrowings

Dividends payab

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

oo ~N O

=
~l

10
11
21
12

13
14

16
18
19
20

15
21

16

As at

31 December 201

31 December 201

The Notes on pages 11 to 62 are an integral pdiesk financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by thedBafaDirectors on 26 February 2015.

|. Papathanasiou J. Costopoulos

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

2.767.87: 2.804.71.
11.477 10.77¢
659.82¢ 654.06¢
174.57: 25.05¢
50 45
142.98( 142.74.
3.756.78l 3.637.40.
543.78: 882.04(
899.05' 865.56(

- 5.26:
1.593.26: 739.31:
3.036.10; 2.492.17.
6.792.882 6.129.575
1.020.08: 1.020.08:

429.99: 561.69:
(273.388) 24.594
1.176.68 1.606.36!
1.760.49; 1.226.43

74.49¢ 72.527
3.00( 3.00(
11.61¢ 13.89¢
1.849.60! 1.315.85;
2.614.36 2.053.27!
60.08" -
16.90! 6.952
1.010.11. 1.145.82!
65.127 1.307
3.766.58! 3.207.35
5.616.19! 4.523.20!
6.792.882 6.129.575
A. Shiamishis KaRahannas

& Chief Financial Officer

DepChief Executive Officer Accounting Director

(7)1 (62)



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ende
Note 31 December 201 31 December 201

Sale: 8.750.184 8.946.258
Cost of sale (8.873.491 (8.890.437
Gross profit (123.307) 55.821
Selling and distribution expen: (112.547 (122.552
Administrative expens (75.684 (75.886
Exploration and development exper 23 (4.266 (2.992
Other operating income/(expenses) - 24 (1.174 (68.233
Dividend incom 68.97¢ 17.12:
Operating profit / (loss) (248.004 (196.720
Finance (expenses)/income - 25 (173.251 (164.692
Currency exchange gains/(los 26 (5.540 1.871
Profit / (loss) before income tax (426.795) (359.541)
Income tax expen 27 113.24! 65.911
Profit / (Loss) for the year (313.550) (293.630)

Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit pemgilan: 18 (3.939 (2.349
(3.939) (2.349)

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to prifor loss:

Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow he 14 (44.773 9.40¢
Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges throeghpcehensivi

income 14 (3.586° 31.46¢
Other Comprehensive income / (loss) for the year et of tax (52.298) 38.520
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period (365.848) (255.110)

Basic and diluted earnings per shart
(expressed in Euro per share) 28 (2,03) (0,96)

The Notes on pages 11 to 62 are an integral pdhiese financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Balance at 1 January 2013
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengpiams

Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow hedges
Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges throwghpecehensivi
income

Other comprehensive income
Profit / (Loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Share based payments
Dividends

Balance at 31 December 2013

Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit pengpiams

Fair value gains / (losses) on cash flow hedges
Derecognition of gains/(losses) on hedges throwghpecehensivi
income

Other comprehensive income / (loss)
Profit / (Loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Share based payments
Distribution of tax free reserves
Transfer to tax on distributed tax free reserves

Balance at 31 December 2014

Note

14

14

13

18

14

14

13
30
30

Share Retained Total
Capital Reserves Earnings Equity
1.020.081 523.400 363.592 1.907.073
- (2.349) - (2.349)
- 9.404 - 9.404
- 31.465 - 31.465
- 38.520 - 38.520
- - (293.630) (293.630)
- 38.520 (293.630) (255.110)
- (226) 477 251
- - (45.845) (45.845)
1.020.081 561.694 24.594 1.606.369
- (3.939) - (3.939)
- (44.773) - (44.773)
- (3.586) - (3.586)
- (52.298) - (52.298)
- - (313.550) (313.550)
- (52.298) (313.550) (365.848)
- (24) 275 251
- (64.277) 192 (64.085)
- (15.101) 15.101 -
1.020.081 429.994 (273.388) 1.176.687

The Notes on pages 11 to 62 are an integral pahiese financial statements.
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Statement of Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment & intaleghsse’

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and egeit & intangible asse
Dividends receive

Interest received

Participation in share capital increase of assesiat

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Loans to affiliated companies
Repayments of borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restréxt cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beging of the year
Exchange gains / (losses) on cash, cash equivaedteestricted cash
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents and restraash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at enfithe year

For the year ended

Note 31 December 2014

31 December 2013

31 691.27( 83.80:
(13.440 -
677.83( 83.80:
(107.783 (85.101
- 2
48.17: 13.74¢
25 20.58¢ 16.11¢
(13) (3.504)
(39.036 (58.739
(168.930 (151517
(363) (43.706)
- (137.900
(694.169) (729.854)
1.045.11! 1.154.701
181.65 91.72:
820.451 116.787
12 739.311 627.738
33.50( (5.214
820.451 116.787
12 1.593.262 739.311

The Notes on pages 11 to 62 are an integral pdiiesk financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Hellenic Petroleum S.A. (the “Company”) operatesntyain the oil industry with its principal activés being
those of refining of crude oil and sale of oil puats and the production and trading of petrochelnpicaducts.
The Company is also engaged in exploration andyatiah of hydrocarbons.

The Company is incorporated in Greece and the addikits registered office i$*8himarras Str. Maroussi,
Greece. The shares of the Company are listed oAttiens Stock Exchange and the London Stock Exahang
through GDRs.

The same accounting policies and recognition andsorement principles are followed in these findncia
statements as compared with the annual consolidatedcial statements of the Group for the yeareendl
December 2014. The Company’s functional and prasentcurrency is the Euro, and the financial infation

in these financial statements is expressed in draisof Euro (unless otherwise stated).

The financial statements of Hellenic Petroleum Sof.year ended 31 December 2014 were approveissae
by the Board of Directors on 26 February 2015. $hareholders of the Company have the power to artend
financial statements after issue.

Users of these stand-alone financial statementsidiead them together with the Group's consoliléiteancial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014der ¢o obtain full information on the financial ition,
results of operations and changes in financialtpesof the Group as a whole. These are locatetheroup’s

website;_ www.helpe.gr.

Notes to the financial statements
(11) / (62)
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in theparation of these financial statements are sebelaw.
These policies have been consistently applied thalyears presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Hellenic Petroleum SoAthe year ended 31 December 2014 have beeangen
accordance with International Financial Reportintgn8ards (IFRS) issued by the International Accognt
Standards Board (“IASB”), as adopted by the Eurapdaion (“EU”) and present the financial positizasults
of operations and cash flows on a going concerishalsich assumes that the Company has plans ire gtac
avoid material disruptions to its operations. lis ttespect Management has concluded that (a) ting goncern
basis of preparation of the accounts is appropréatd (b) all assets and liabilities are approplygpresented in
accordance with the Company’s accounting policies.

These financial statements have been prepared uhéehistorical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale financial asseasd financial assets and financial liabilities cliding
derivative instruments) at fair value through profiloss.

The preparation of financial statements, in acoocdawith IFRS, requires the use of critical accmgt
estimates. It also requires management to exeitsispidgment in the process of applying the accognt
policies. The areas involving a higher degree algjuent or complexity, or areas where assumptiors an
estimates are significant to the financial stateiame disclosed in Note 4 “Critical accountingireates and
judgments”. These estimates are based on managsrbest knowledge of current events and actiongjahc
results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

2.1.1 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations

Certain new standards, amendments to standardsngergretations have been issued that are mandébory
periods beginning during the current reportinggeand subsequent reporting periods. The Companwgisiation
of the effect of new standards, amendments to atdadand interpretations that are relevant topesations is set
out below.

a) The following standards, amendments to standardsra@rpretations to existing standards are apiplécto
the Company for periods on or after 1 January 2014

e |AS 32 (Amendment) "Financial Instruments: Preseomd (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014). This amendment to thdiGgtipn guidance in IAS 32 clarifies some of the
requirements for offsetting financial assets anuhricial liabilities on the statement of financial
position. The adoption of the amendment does neg hasignificant impact for the Company.

e |AS 36 (Amendment) "Recoverable amount disclodareson-financial assets" (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014his amendment requires: a) disclosure of the
recoverable amount of an asset or cash generatingd@GU) when an impairment loss has been
recognised or reversed and b) detailed disclosuh®w the fair value less costs of disposal hasibee
measured when an impairment loss has been recadgoizeversed. Also, it removes the requirement
to disclose the recoverable amount when a CGU aentpodwill or indefinite lived intangible assets
but there has been no impairment. The adoptioh@fimendment does not have a significant impact
for the Company.

e |AS 39 (Amendment) "Financial Instruments: Recagmitnd Measurement”_(effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 201ZFhis amendment will allow hedge accounting to
continue in a situation where a derivative, whics tbeen designated as a hedging instrument, is
novated to effect clearing with a central countespas a result of laws or regulations, if specific
conditions are met. The adoption of the amendmemsdhot have a significant impact for the
Company.

Notes to the financial statements
(12) / (62)
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e IFRIC 21 "Levies" (effective for annual periods lexng on or after 17 June 2014)This
interpretation sets out the accounting for an @biim to pay a levy imposed by government thabis n
income tax. The interpretation clarifies that thsigating event that gives rise to a liability taypa
levy (one of the criteria for the recognition ofiaility according to IAS 37) is the activity de#zed
in the relevant legislation that triggers the pagtnef the levy. The interpretation could result in
recognition of a liability later than today, pattiarly in connection with levies that are triggeiey
circumstances on a specific date. The Company Hapted this amendment with no significant
impact.

e Group of standards on consolidation and joint ayeaments (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014):

The International Accounting Standards Board (“IABBias published five new standards on
consolidation and joint arrangements: IFRS 10, IFRSIFRS 12, IAS 27 (amendment) and IAS 28
(amendment). These amendments do not have a swmtifimpact for the Company. The main
provisions are as follows:

— IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statement&RS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control
and consolidation in IAS 27 and SIC 12. The newddad changes the definition of control
for the purpose of determining which entities skdoble consolidated. This definition is
supported by extensive application guidance thalrem$es the different ways in which a
reporting entity (investor) might control anothertity (investee). The revised definition of
control focuses on the need to have both powerdtineent ability to direct the activities that
significantly influence returns) and variable retsi(can be positive, negative or both) before
control is present. The new standard also incluglédance on participating and protective
rights, as well as on agency/ principal relatiopshi

— IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangements'IFRS 11 provides for a more realistic reflectiof joint
arrangements by focusing on the rights and obbigatof the arrangement, rather than its legal
form. The types of joint arrangements are reduoeivb: joint operations and joint ventures.
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is hanger allowed. Equity accounting is
mandatory for participants in joint ventures. Hasitthat participate in joint operations will
follow accounting much like that for joint assetsjoint operations today. The standard also
provides guidance for parties that participate amtj arrangements but do not have joint
control.

— IFRS 12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitie$FRS 12 requires entities to disclose
information, including significant judgments andasptions, which enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature, risks and fiahmdfects associated with the entity's
interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint agam@nts and unconsolidated structured entities.
An entity can provide any or all of the above discires without having to apply IFRS 12 in
its entirety, or IFRS 10 or 11, or the amended PXSor 28.

— IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (Amendment) "Congdeliddinancial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure of interests in othatities: Transition guidance" The
amendment to the transition requirements in IFR8s1ll and 12 clarifies the transition
guidance in IFRS 10 and limits the requirementprtvide comparative information for IFRS
12 disclosures only to the period that immediaplycedes the first annual period of IFRS 12
application. Comparative disclosures are not reglufor interests in unconsolidated structured
entities.

— IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Amendment) "Investergities". The amendment to IFRS 10
defines an investment entity and introduces anpiae from consolidationMany funds and
similar entities that qualify as investment enstigill be exempt from consolidating most of
their subsidiaries, which will be accounted forfat value through profit or loss, although
controlled. The amendments to IFRS 12 introducelasires that an investment entity needs
to make.

Notes to the financial statements
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— 1AS 27 (Amendment) "Separate Financial Statemeiitsls Standard is issued concurrently
with IFRS 10 and together, the two IFRSs superdéd&: 27 "Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements". The amended IAS 27 prestrithe accounting and disclosure
requirements for investment in subsidiaries, joiehtures and associates when an entity
prepares separate financial statements. At the dam& the Board relocated to IAS 27
requirements from IAS 28 "Investments in Associataad IAS 31 "Interests in Joint
Ventures" regarding separate financial statements.

— 1AS 28 (Amendment) "Investments in Associates aiml Ventures"lAS 28 "Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures" replaces IAS 28¢e3tments in Associates". The objective of
this Standard is to prescribe the accounting feestments in associates and to set out the
requirements for the application of the equity rodttwhen accounting for investments in
associates and joint ventures, following the isfu&RS 11.

e |AS 19R (Amendment) “Employee Benefits” (effediiveannual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014) These narrow scope amendments apply to conwititirom employees or third parties to
defined benefit plans and simplify the accountiagdontributions that are independent of the number
of years of employee service, for example, employ@&ributions that are calculated according to a
fixed percentage of salary. The adoption of theradmeent does not have a significant impact for the
Company.

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 (effective fonw@al periods beginning on or after 1 February

2015):

The amendments set out below describe the key elkaiogseven IFRSs following the publication of
the results of the IASB’s 2010-12 cycle of the adrimprovements project. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact the amendment will have sfiftancial statements.

— IFRS 2 “Share-based paymentThe amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vegti
condition’ and separately defines ‘performance @md and ‘service condition’.

— IFRS 3 “Business combinations"The amendment clarifies that an obligation to pay
contingent consideration which meets the definitiba financial instrument is classified as a
financial liability or as equity, on the basis difiet definitions in IAS 32 “Financial
instruments: Presentation”. It also clarifies thlktnon-equity contingent consideration, both
financial and non-financial, is measured at falueahrough profit or loss.

— IFRS 8 “Operating segmentsThe amendment requires disclosure of the judgesnmaide
by management in aggregating operating segments.

— IFRS 13 “Fair value measurementThe amendment clarifies that the standard does not
remove the ability to measure short-term receivabled payables at invoice amounts in cases
where the impact of non-discounting is immaterial.

— |AS 16 “Property, plant and equipmendndIAS 38 “Intangible assets"Both standards are
amended to clarify how the gross carrying amourdt Hre accumulated depreciation are
treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.

— 1AS 24 “Related party disclosuresThe standard is amended to include, as a relateg, @n
entity that provides key management personnel ses\o the reporting entity or to the parent
of the reporting entity.
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e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013 (effective fonwal periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015):

The amendments set out below describe the key ekangour IFRSs following the publication of the
results of the IASB’s 2011-13 cycle of the annuapiovements project. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact the amendment will have sfiiancial statements.

— IFRS 3 “Business combinationsThis amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 does not apiptye
accounting for the formation of any joint arrangemender IFRS 11 in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself.

— IFRS 13 “Fair value measurementThe amendment clarifies that the portfolio excapfio
IFRS 13 applies to all contracts (including norafigial contracts) within the scope of IAS
39/IFRS 9.

— 1AS 40 “Investment property'The standard is amended to clarify that IAS 40 I&RIS 3 are
not mutually exclusive.

e Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014 (effective fonwal periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016):

The amendments set out below describe the key ekatogfour IFRSs. The improvements have not
yet been endorsed by the EU.

— IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and distared operations”.The amendment
clarifies that, when an asset (or disposal grosipgclassified from ‘held for sale’ to ‘held for
distribution’, or vice versa, this does not congéta change to a plan of sale or distribution,
and does not have to be accounted for as such.

— IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: DisclosuresThe amendment adds specific guidance to help
management determine whether the terms of an amaegt to service a financial asset which
has been transferred constitute continuing invoksmmand clarifies that the additional
disclosure required by the amendments to IFRS Tsclbsure — Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities” is not specifically regad for all interim periods, unless required by
IAS 34.

— 1AS 19 “Employee benefits'The amendment clarifies that, when determiningdiseount
rate for post-employment benefit obligations, ittle currency that the liabilities are
denominated in that is important, and not the agumhere they arise.

— 1AS 34 “Interim financial reporting” The amendment clarifies what is meant by theregfee
in the standard to ‘information disclosed elsewtiaréne interim financial report’.

e IFRS 11 Amendment) “Joint Arrangements” (effective for aahperiods beginning on or after 1
January 2016). This amendment requires an invéstapply the principles of business combination
accounting when it acquires an interest in a jaiperation that constitutes a ‘business’. This
amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

e IAS 16 and IAS 38Amendments) “Clarification of Acceptable Methodk @epreciation and
Amortisatiori (effective for annual periods beginning on oreafii January 2016)his amendment
clarifies that the use of revenue-based methodsatoulate the depreciation of an asset is not
appropriate and it also clarifies that revenue easggally presumed to be an inappropriate basis for
measuring the consumption of the economic benefitthodied in an intangible asset. These
amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

Notes to the financial statements
(15) / (62)



Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year ended 31 December 2014
(Al amounts in Euro thousands unless otherwisted)a

2.2

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments) “Sale or Contriyutdf Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venturgeffective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016). These
amendments address an inconsistency between theements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28 in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assetsMeen an investor and its associate or joint venture
The main consequence of the amendments is thdl gafa or loss is recognised when a transaction
involves a business (whether it is housed in aidigrg or not). A partial gain or loss is recogmise
when a transaction involves assets that do nottitotesa business, even if these assets are haused
subsidiary. The amendments have not yet been ezdibssthe EU.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Equity Method in Separate faia@nstatements”(effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016). This amemira#lows entities to use the equity method to
account for investments in subsidiaries, joint uee$ and associates in their separate financial
statements and clarifies the definition of sepafatancial statements. This amendment has not yet
been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and subsequent anmmerdts to IFRS 9 and IFRS_7 (effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018BRS 9 replaces the guidance in IAS 39 which
deals with the classification and measurement rdricial assets and financial liabilities and ials
includes an expected credit losses model thateeplthe incurred loss impairment model used today.
IFRS 9 Hedge Accounting establishes a more priesiplased approach to hedge accounting and
addresses inconsistencies and weaknesses in tlemtcarodel of IAS 39. The Company is currently
investigating the impact of IFRS 9 on its financiétements. The Company cannot currently early
adopt IFRS 9 as it has not been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customgeffective for annual periods beginning on or iafte
1 January 2017). IFRS 15 has been issued in Ma.2lMe objective of the standard is to provide a
single, comprehensive revenue recognition model dbr contracts with customers to improve
comparability within industries, across industriasg across capital markets. It contains princifiias

an entity will apply to determine the measuremdmewsenue and timing of when it is recognised. The
underlying principle is that an entity will recogeirevenue to depict the transfer of goods or cesvi
to customers at an amount that the entity expectset entitled to in exchange for those goods or
services. The standard has not yet been endorsta: U.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (Amendments) “Invedtriemities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception” (effective for annual periods beginning on or mfteJanuary 2016). These amendments
clarify the application of the consolidation exdeptfor investment entities and their subsidiariEise
amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 1 (Amendment)”Disclosure Initiative” (effective for annual periods beginning on or @|fte
January 2016). These amendments clarify guidanckA$h 1 on materiality and aggregation, the
presentation of subtotals, the structure of finansfatements and the disclosure of accountingipsli
The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU

Investments in affiliated companies

Investments in affiliated companies are presentedhe cost of the interest acquired in the subsiEba
associates, and joint ventures less any provigmmisnpairment.

2.3

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner censistith the internal reporting provided to the athi
operating decision-maker. The chief operating dewcisnaker, who is responsible for allocating resesrand
assessing performance of the operating segmerdshé®n identified as the executive committee thatam
strategic decisions.
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2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are mmedkusing the currency of the primary economidremwnent
in which the entity operates (the functional cuayn The financial statements are presented in Buhich is
the Company’s functional and presentation currefi@gyen that the Company’s primary activities areoih
refining and trading, in line with industry praa&; most crude oil and oil product trading trarisastare based
on the international reference prices of crudeaail oil products in US Dollars. The Company traeslahis
value to Euro at the time of any transaction.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated imoftinctional currency using the exchange rategajiieg at

the dates of the transactions, or valuation whesms are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains aseslos
resulting from the settlement of such transactiang from the translation at year-end exchange rafes
monetary assets and liabilities denominated inidoreurrencies are recognised in the income stateinethe
financial statements’ line that is relevant to tkpecific transaction, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedgesqualifying net investment hedges.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securitiesod@nated in foreign currency classified as avaddbr sale
are analysed between translation differences reguitom changes in the amortised cost of the sgguand
other changes in the carrying amount of the securitanslation differences are recognized in profitoss, and
other changes in carrying amounts are recognizethier comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financigseds and liabilities are reported as part of #irevialue gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetamgricial assets and liabilities such as equitied &efair value
through profit or loss are recognized in profil@ss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Tratish differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equdiassified as available for sale, are included theo
comprehensive income.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly ldmidings, oil refineries and equipment. Propeptgnt and
equipment is shown at historical cost less accutedldepreciation. Historical cost includes expandithat is
directly attributable to the acquisition of thenite.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngrayinount or recognised as a separate asset, expapte,
only when it is probable that future economic bésefssociated with the item will flow to the Compaand the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. Theyrayramount of the replaced part is derecognisegaRs and
maintenance are charged to the income statemeimcaged. Refinery turnaround costs are capitaliaad
charged against income on a straight line basisthetnext scheduled turnaround period, to therixthat such
costs improve either the useful economic life & #gquipment or its production capacity.

Assets under construction are assets (mainly telatehe refinery units) that are in the processafstruction
or development, and are carried at cost. Cost dedicost of construction, professional fees anéradirect
costs. Assets under construction are not depregiatethe corresponding assets are not yet awailablse.

Land is also not depreciated. Depreciation on assetalculated using the straight-line methodlkocate the
cost of each asset to its residual value overstisnated useful life, as shown on the table belomtifie main
classes of assets:

— Buildings 13 — 40 years
— Plant & Machinery

= Specialised industrial installations and Machinery 10 — 35 years
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= Other equipment 5—10 years
— Motor Vehicles 5—10 years

— Furniture and fixtures
= Computer hardware 3 -5 years

= Other furniture and fixtures 4 — 10 years

Included in specialised industrial installations agfinery units, petrochemical plants and tanklifees. Based
on technical studies performed, the expected udiééubf the new refinery units (Elefsina refinerias been
estimated to be up to 35 years. The remaining usefitnomic life of other refining units has beeviegved and
adjusted from 1 July 2013 and in general does xeaed 25 years.

Depreciation on refinery components (included witbBpecialised industrial installations) is chargédtér the
commissioning phase is completed and the new updraefinery units are ready for start-up and concmér
operation. In case of more complex projects such asw upgraded refinery the commissioning protess
lengthier one with a number of activities for eactit separately and then for combination of ungsgstems.
Once all units achieve start-up status with oiliie. operations with feed stocks) temperaturesgqre and
catalysts are applied which over a period of timeaddthe units to their normal state of operatiod as intended
to be used. After that, units need to be testegifoper capacity and yield performance at whichestée unit is
made available for proper commercial operation.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives afiewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the endacheeporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immealiato its recoverable amount if the asset’s cagyamount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amoefér(to Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined bparomg the proceeds with the carrying amount. Tlaese
included in the statement of comprehensive incoritleim/'Other operating income / (expenses) and ogzns
/ (losses)’.

2.6 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable e facquisition, construction or production of aldfyiag asset
are added to the cost of the asset during the ghefitime that is required to complete and prepheeasset for
its intended use.

Borrowing costs are capitalised to the extent thatls are borrowed specifically for the purpos@lofaining a
qualifying asset. To the extent that funds are dwed generally and used for the purpose of obtgimin
qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costgjikle for capitalisation is determined by applyiag
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on thattagdl other borrowing costs are expensed as eclr

2.7 Intangible assets
(a) Licences and rights

License fees for the use of know-how relating te folypropylene plant have been recognised at aodt
capitalised in accordance with IAS 38, Intangibles@ts. They have a definite useful life and areezhiat cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is ¢paialculated using the straight-line method tocate the
cost of licences and rights over their estimatefuldives (15 years).
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Licenses and rights include Upstream Exploratights which are amortised over the exploration kéas per
the terms of the relevant licenses.

(b) Computer software

These include primarily the costs of implementihg {ERP) computer software program. Acquired coeput
software licences are capitalised on the basishefdosts incurred to acquire and bring to use fexiic
software. These costs are amortised using theybktriinie method over their estimated useful livé$a(5 years).

2.8 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

(a) Exploration and evaluation assets

During the exploration period and before a comnareiable discovery, oil and natural gas explomatand
evaluation expenditures are expensed. Geologichbanphysical costs as well as costs directly @ssatwith
an exploration are expensed as incurred. Explorgiroperty leasehold acquisition costs are capédliwithin
intangible assets and amortised over the periohedficence or in relation to the progress of thévdies if
there is a substantial difference.

(b) Development of tangible and intangible assets

Expenditure on the construction, installation ompdetion of infrastructure facilities such as ptaths, pipelines
and the drilling of commercially proven developmertlls is capitalized within tangible and intangitdssets
according to their nature. When development is deted on a specific field, it is transferred to gwotion
assets. No depreciation and/or amortization isgdthduring the development phase.

(c) Oil and gas production assets

Oil and gas properties are aggregated exploratiohexaluation tangible assets and development eipeas
associated with the production of proved reserves.

(d) Depreciation/amortization

Oil and gas properties/intangible assets are digteeizamortized using the unit-of-production methddit-of-

production rates are based on proved developedvessevhich are oil, gas and other mineral reseestisnated
to be recovered from existing facilities using eumtr operating methods. Oil and gas volumes areidenesl
produced once they have been measured through svedt@ustody transfer or sales transaction pointbea
outlet valve on the field storage tank.

(e) Impairment — exploration and evaluation assets

The exploration property leasehold acquisition €ast tested for impairment whenever facts andigistances
indicate impairment. For the purposes of assessapgirment, the exploration property leasehold &itjan
costs subject to testing are grouped with existagh-generating units (CGUs) of production fieldat tare
located in the same geographical region correspgrtdi each licence.

(f) Impairment — proved oil and gas properties am@angible assets

Proved oil and gas properties and intangible assetseviewed for impairment whenever events ongka in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount matybe recoverable. An impairment loss is recaogphifor
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amounéeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable ani®time
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs toasall value in use. For the purposes of assessingrimgnt, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which theeesaparately identifiable cash flows.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are sudiject to amortisation and, are tested annuatlynfipairment.
Assets that are subject to amortisation or deptiegiare tested for impairment whenever eventshanges in
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circumstances indicate that the carrying amount maybe recoverable. An impairment loss is recaghifor
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amounéeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable ani®time
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs toaadl value in use (discounted cash flows an assstpscted to
generate based upon management’s expectationfuoé feconomic and operating conditions). For thppses
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped #bwlest levels for which there are separately idiattie cash
flows (cash-generating units). Prior impairmentsnoh-financial assets, other than goodwill are eeeid for
possible reversal at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1 Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets infelewing categories: at fair value through prditloss, held to
maturity, loans and receivables and available-&be-sThe classification depends on the purposevfach the
financial assets were acquired. Management detesmthe classification of its financial assets atiah
recognition and re-evaluates this designation atyereporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profitloss

A financial asset is classified in this categoradfjuired principally for the purpose of sellingtie short term
or if so designated by management. Derivativesals@ categorised in this category, as ‘held faditrg’ unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in thisargitage classified as current assets if they ateeheld for
trading or are expected to be realised within 12tm® of the end of the reporting period, othervitsey are
classified as non-current.

(b) Held to maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivativeafinial assets with fixed or determinable paymentsfixed
maturity that an entity has the positive intentaord ability to hold to maturity, other than thobattthe entity
upon initial recognition designates as at fair eathrough profit or loss, available for sale ornsaand
receivables.

(c) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finanagaets with fixed or determinable payments that rere
quoted in an active market and with no intentiontrafling. They are included in current assets, @xéar
maturities greater than 12 months after the balaheet date. These are classified as non-curreatsag.oans
and receivables include “Trade and other receigibdend “Cash and cash equivalents” in the stateroént
financial position.

(d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-deiest that are either designated in this categonyobdrclassified
in any of the other categories. They are inclugeddn-current assets unless management intendsptose of
the investment within 12 months of the end of #ygorting period.

2.10.2 Recognition and measurement

Financial assets carried at fair value throughipeofd loss are initially recognised at fair vakmrd transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of compreleeinsiome.

Purchases and sales of financial assets are rasenbon trade-date — the date on which the Compamynits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets di@lynrecognised at fair value plus transactiarsts for all
financial assets not carried at fair value thropgbfit or loss. Financial assets are derecogniseenvihe rights

to receive cash flows from the investments haveiredpor have been transferred and the Company has
transferred substantially all risks and rewardewffiership.
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Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investmare carried at amortised cost using the effedtiterest
method. Realised and unrealised gains and lossésgairom changes in the fair value of the ‘Finahassets at
fair value through profit or loss’ category arelimted in the statement of comprehensive incomberperiod in
which they have arisen. Changes in the fair valumonetary and non-monetary financial assets dladsas

available for sale are recognized in other comprsive income. When securities classified as aviailedy sale

are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair valugisaichents recognized in equity are included initftme

statement as “gains or loss from investment séesiit

The fair values of quoted investments are baseduorent bid prices. If the market for a financiakat is not
active (and for unlisted securities), the Compastaldishes fair value by using valuation technigquesese
include the use of recent arm’s-length transacticgference to other instruments that are subsinthe same
and discounted cash flow analysis refined to réflee issuer’s specific circumstances.

2.10.3  Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset andndseamount reported in the balance sheet, whea tha legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amoants there is an intention to settle on a net barsigalize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Tdgally enforceable right must not be contingenfudore event
and must be enforceable in the normal course dhbss and in the event of default, insolvency arkbaptcy
of the company or the counterparty.

2.10.4 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Company assesses at each end of the repodiiagd pvhether there is objective evidence thanarfcial
asset or a group of financial assets is impainegairment testing for receivables is describedoie2.14.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

In the case of equity securities classified aslalbbs for sale, a significant or prolonged deciim¢he fair value
of the security below its cost is considered inedmining whether the securities are impaired. I anch

evidence exists for available-for-sale financiadeds, the cumulative loss — measured as the differbetween
the acquisition cost and the current fair valusslany impairment loss on that financial asset ipusly

recognised in profit or loss — is removed from &gaind recognised in the statement of compreherigoeme.

Impairment losses recognised in the statement wipcehensive income on equity instruments are narsed
through the statement of comprehensive income.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activiies

As part of its risk management policy, the Compati§zes currency and commodity derivatives to gite the
impact of volatility in commodity prices and foreigxchange rates. Derivative financial instrumeamésinitially
recognized at fair value on the date a derivatim@ract is entered into and are subsequently resaned at their
fair value. Changes in fair values of the derivatfinancial instruments are recognised at eachrtiegodate
either in the statement of comprehensive incomie equity, depending on whether the derivativedsignated

as a hedging instrument, and if so, the naturehefitem being hedged. The Company designates rertai
derivatives as either:

(a) Hedges of the fair value of recognised assetsabililies or a firm commitment (fair value hedge);

(b) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a remssgl asset or liability or a highly probable fastc
transaction (cash flow hedge).

The Company documents, at the inception of thestation, the relationship between hedging instrusmand
hedged items, as well as its risk management obgsctand strategy for undertaking various hedging
transactions. The Company also documents its ass@ssboth at hedge inception and on an ongoinis,bafs
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whether derivatives that are used in hedging titimszs are highly effective in offsetting changedair values
or cash flows of hedged items.

The instruments used for this risk management decicommodity exchange traded contracts (ICE futufal
refinery margin forwards, product price forward tants or options.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair vahfethese derivatives is recognized in other comgmsive
income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffextiportion is recognized immediately in the statetmzn
comprehensive income within “Other operating inc{expenses) and other gains/(losses)”. Amounts
accumulated in equity are recycled in the staternémbmprehensive income in the periods when thigée
item affects profit or loss (i.e. when the foredaahsaction being hedged takes place) within Gbséles.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, bedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge adtayrany
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at thiate remains in equity and is recognized when tiredast
transaction is ultimately recognized in the stateinaod comprehensive income. When a forecast traiogais no
longer expected to occur, the derivative is degteied and the cumulative gain or loss that waerteg in
equity is immediately transferred to the statemeftcomprehensive income within “Other operating
income/(expenses) and other gains/(losses)”.

Derivatives held for trading

The derivatives that do not qualify for hedge actmg are classified as held-for-trading and actedifor at
fair value through profit or loss. Changes in th& ¥alue of the derivative instruments that do goalify for
hedge accounting are recognized immediately irsthement of comprehensive income.

2.12 Government grants

Government grants received by the Company relatrigroperty, Plant and Equipment are initially mreleal as
deferred government grants and included in “Otbaglterm liabilities”. Subsequently, they are ctedito the
statement of comprehensive income over the uséfek lof the related assets in direct relationshbipthe
depreciation charged on such assets.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories comprise crude oil and other raw matgrirefined and semi-finished products, petrochals;
merchandise, consumables and other spare parts.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andrealisable value. Cost is determined using the thipn
weighted average cost method. The cost of finigeemtls and work in progress comprises raw matedaisct
labour, other direct costs and related productieerireads. It does not include borrowing costs. fdalisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinemurse of business, less estimated costs of agiopland
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Spagegensumed within a year are carried as invgraod
recognized in profit or loss when consumed.

Under IEA and EU regulations, Greece has a politymaintaining 90 days of strategic stock reserves
(Compulsory Stock Obligations). This responsibilg passed on to all companies who import andisdhe
domestic market who have the responsibility to t@mand finance the appropriate stock levels. hstocks
are part of the operating stocks and are valuetti®@same basis.

2.14 Trade receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 20-90 daysg, are recognised initially at fair value andssquently
measured at amortised cost using the effectivedstenethod, less provision for impairment. A psiom for
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impairment of trade receivables is established wihene is objective evidence that the Company moll be
able to collect all amounts due according to theial terms of the receivables.

Trade receivables include bills of exchange andngsory notes from customers.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtorrgbability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy fimancial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in paysane considered indicators the receivable is iragaThe
amount of the provision is the difference betwdenasset’s carrying amount and the present valestohated
future cash flows, discounted at the original dffecinterest rate. The amount of the provisioneisognised in
the statement of comprehensive income and is iedud “Selling, Distribution and Administrative expses”.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impeant loss decreases and the decrease can bedrelate
objectively to an event occurring after the impannhwas recognised (such as an improvement ineb&ods
credit rating), the reversal of the previously mguised impairment loss is recognised in the incetagement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hapdsiig held at call with banks, other short-terghhy liquid
investments such as marketable securities andd@pesits with original maturities of three monthdess.

2.16  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Increateststs directly attributable to the issue of navares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction fronptioeeeds, net of tax.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair valumt of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings atesequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference betweemptbceeds (net of transaction costs) and the ngtitemvalue
is recognised in the statement of comprehensiveniecover the period of the borrowings using theaibe
interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilitresracognised as transaction costs of the loametextent that it
is probable that some or all of the facility wikk ldrawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred tig draw-
down occurs. To the extent that there is no evidehat it is probable that some or all of the faciwill be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payrdweritquidity services and amortised over the pérof the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitiedass the Company has an unconditional right tordefelement
of the liability for at least 12 months after thedeof the reporting period. At the end of the rejmgr period
payable amounts of bank overdrafts are includedimiborrowings in current liabilities on the statmh of
financial position. In the statement of cash flobank overdrafts are shown within financing aci@gt

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises curredt @aferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statenaént
comprehensive income, except to the extent thatates to items recognized directly in equitythis case, the
tax is also recognized in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated orbdsss of the tax laws enacted or substantivelytedaat the

end of the reporting period in the country where tBompany operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taketax returns with respect to situations in whigiplecable

tax regulation is subject to interpretation. ltaddishes provisions where appropriate on the bafseEmounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using ttability method, on temporary differences arisingfween the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their @agrgmounts in the financial statements. The defeincome tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial regotion of an asset or liability in a transactiaher than a
business combination, that at the time of the aaiisn affects neither accounting nor taxable profiloss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax raaesl (aws) that have been enacted or substantiadlgted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to ap@ly thie related deferred income tax asset is relatisehe
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to ttentethat it is probable that future taxable profitl be
available against which the temporary differenaas lge utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areedfighen there is a legally enforceable right teetffcurrent tax
assets against current tax liabilities and wherdéferred income tax assets and liabilities relai@come taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on eithertthable entity or different taxable entities, wéhnere is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations
The Company has both defined benefit and definatriboition plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan undbich the Company pays fixed contributions intseparate
entity. The Company has no legal or constructivigations to pay further contributions if the fuddes not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees theefienrelating to employee service in the curremd grior
periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Company paystridoutions to publiclyadministered Social Security funds
on a mandatory basis. The Company has no furthengat obligations once the contributions have bgssd.
The contributions are recognised as employee heegfiense when they are due. Prepaid contributimas
recognised as an asset to the extent that a clasturer a reduction in the future payments is add.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defian amount of pension benefit that an employ#éeegeive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or moteifasuch as age, years of service and compensation

The liability recognised in the statement of finah@osition in respect of defined benefit penspans is the
present value of the defined benefit obligatiothatend of the reporting period, less the fair galfiplan assets.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated anlyubly independent actuaries using the projected craidit
method. The present value of the defined benefigation is determined by discounting the estimafigtdire
cash outflows using interest rates of high-qualityporate bonds that are denominated in the curienahich
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms #tumity approximating to the terms of the relateshgion
liability.

The current service cost of the defined benefinplacognised in the income statement in employsreefit

expense, except where included in the cost of aataseflects the increase in the defined bendfigation

resulting from employee service in the current ydmmefit changes curtailments and settlements. rigie
interest cost is calculated by applying the distoate to the net balance of the defined benefigation and

the fair value of plan assets.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experiadjestments and changes in actuarial assumptiensharged
or credited to equity in other comprehensive incamtde period in which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediatelyeimitome statement.
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(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmentersninated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundanexxéhange for these benefits. The company recegnis
termination benefits at the earlier of the follogidates: (a) when the company can no longer witihdina offer

of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recagmisosts for a restructuring that is within thepscof 1AS 37

and involves the payment of termination benefits.thhe case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measuaséd on the number of employees expected to atiwept
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 monthsiathe end of the reporting period are discountetheir
present value.

(c) Share-based compensation

The company operates a share options plan. Thé dataunt to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of thdomg granted, at the date of granting. Non-masestting
conditions are included in assumptions about thabar of options that are expected to vest. At eapbrting
period end, the entity revises its estimates ofrilmaber of options that are expected to vest.dbgaises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, ifyarin the statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issaesshares. The proceeds received net of any lgirect
attributable transaction costs are credited toesbapital (nominal value) and share premium whenotbtions
are exercised.

2.20 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initidlfgia value and subsequently are measured at &®drtost
and using the effective interest method. Accoumtgaple are classified as current liabilities if pent is due
within one year or less. If not, they are presemtedon-current liabilities.

2.21 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restrtioty costs and legal claims are recognised whenCibmpany
has a present legal or constructive obligation gsalt of past events; it is probable that anlowtbf resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and #m@ount has been reliably estimated. Restructuriogigions
comprise lease termination penalties and emplogemination payments. Provisions are not recognfeed
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value cdgesment’s best estimate of the expenditure requirsettle
the present obligation at the end of the reportiagod. The discount rate used to determine theeprtevalue
reflects current market assessments of the timeevafl money and the increases specific to theliiabi

2.22  Environmental liabilities

Environmental expenditure that relates to currentuture revenues is expensed or capitalised asopppte.
Expenditure that relates to an existing conditiansed by past operations and that does not cotgribicurrent
or future earnings is expensed.

The Company has an environmental policy which caasphith existing legislation and all obligatioresulting

from its environmental and operational licencesoidder to comply with all rules and regulations ttompany
has set up a monitoring mechanism in accordandetté requirements of the relevant authoritiestiarmore,

investment plans are adjusted to reflect any knéwtare environmental requirements. The above meato
expenses are estimated based on the relevant emérgal studies.
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Liabilities for environmental remediation costs aeeognised when environmental assessments or-afgaare
probable and the associated costs can be reasomatiigated. Generally, the timing of these provisio
coincides with the commitment to a formal plan ofien or, if earlier, on divestment or on closufdractive
sites. The amount recognised is the best estinfateecexpenditure required. If the effect of thmei value of
money is material, the amount recognised is thegmtevalue of the estimated future expenditure.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the sale oflg@md services, net of value-added tax and angee®aties,
rebates and discounts. Revenue is recognised &xthat that it is probable that the economic bigneiill flow
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably mmedsRevenue is recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods — wholesale

Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when tinéfisant risks and rewards of ownership of the gobdve
passed to the buyer, the Company has deliveregriiducts to the customer, the customer has accepéed
products and collectability of the related receleahs reasonably assured.

(b) Sales of services

For sales of services, revenue is recognised imatlo®unting period in which the services are resdleby
reference to stage of completion of the specifims$action and assessed on the basis of the aeites
provided as a proportion of the total servicesa@lovided.

(c) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effectinterest method. When a receivable is impaired ctmapany
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amdaeing the estimated future cash flow discourded
original effective interest rate of the instrumaard continues unwinding the discount as interesirme.

(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right teeree payment is established.

2.24 Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment, whereQbmpany has substantially all the risks and rewarfds
ownership, are classified as finance leases. Fenbeases are capitalised at the lease’s inceptidredower of
the fair value of the leased property and the prtiegglue of the minimum lease payments. Each Ipagment is
allocated between the liability and finance chargesas to achieve a constant periodic rate ofesteon the
finance balance outstanding. The correspondingatestligations, net of finance charges, are inalde
“Borrowings”. The interest element of the finanaesttis charged to the statement of comprehensiv@nie
over the lease period so as to produce a constgioidic rate of interest on the remaining balancehe liability
for each period. The property, plant and equipraequired under finance leases are depreciatedtioweshorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term.

The Company does not presently have any leasearnhatassified as finance leases.

Leases where the lessors retain substantially mifis@gnt portion of the risks and rewards of owigpsare
classified as operating leases. Payments made wpdeating leases (net of any incentives receiverh fthe
lessors) are charged to the statement of compriedeeimcome on a straight-line basis over the peonbdhe
lease.
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2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholdersecognised as a liability in the Company’s ficial
statements in the period in which the dividendsaagroved, by the Company’s Shareholders’ Geneeadtivig.

2.26  Changes in accounting policies

The Company adopted the new standards on consolidad joint arrangements (IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IARS
and the amendments in IAS 27 and IAS 28). The adlomif the standards did not result in changes riou@
structure.

The Company also adopted IFRIC 21 “Levies”, whiekssout the accounting for an obligation to pag\y lif
that liability is within the scope of IAS 37 “Pr®idns”. The interpretation addresses what the atitig event is
that gives rise to pay a levy and when a liabgitypuld be recognised. The adoption of the standasdesulted
in additional provisions booked within Current ine® tax liabilities, which are however not matefial the
Company.

The adoption of the amendments in IAS 32 “Finanitiatruments: Presentation”, IAS 36 “Recoverabl@ant
disclosures for non-financial assets”, IAS 39 “Fio@l Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” [&%119
(revised 2011) “Employee Benefits” did not havensfigant impact for the Company.

2.27 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have beeasgfibd to conform to changes in presentatiohéncturrent
year.

3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities are primarily centred awbuts Downstream Refining (including Petrochensgal
assets, with secondary activities relating to epgilon of hydrocarbons. As such, the Company i®sad to a
variety of financial and commodity markets risksliding foreign exchange and commodity price rigiedit
risk, liquidity risk, cash-flow risk and interestte risk. In line with international best practices within the
context of local markets and legislative framewdile Company’s overall risk management policies atm
reducing possible exposure to market volatility &od mitigating its adverse effects on the finahgiosition of
the Company to the extent possible. In general, kilye factors that impact the Company’s operatiores a
summarised as follows:

Greek MacrosDuring the previous years the Company faced exgegtichallenges and increased cost of doing
business (higher cost of funding, increased suppsgs) mainly as a result of the economic crisi€iaece and
the political uncertainty. In 2014 these challengesained, albeit with a less profound impact amsiof
improvement appeared in certain areas (macro emvieat, funding and supply cost). Following six yeaf
consecutive decline, GDP grew for the first time014 by +0.8%. In line with GDP evolution, domedtiels
consumption grew for the first time since 2009yeni by heating gasoil. Motor fuels demand for 28d@ained
at the same level as in 2013 since the declinkérfitst half of the year was offset in the sechatf, supported
by tourism and increased economic activity. Ingeeond quarter of 2014, Hellenic Republic, Grealkkband a
number of large corporates, including Hellenic Blem were able to access international capitaketarand
raise funds, improving liquidity in the economy ashdving funding costs lower. The improvement igulidity
and funding conditions had in turn a positive efffet the cost of supply, as not only the risk geodif Greece in
international commodity markets improved but addisil liquidity made easier to gain access to mappkers.
Notwithstanding the above and given the recentudisions between the Hellenic Republic and inteonati
institutional authorities, risks remain as regatdscontinued economic stability in Greece. Thésesmrelate to
the new agreement that will be reached betweerlétienic Republic and its international lendersjchihcould
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have an impact on the country’s banking systenfjstal policy and the implementation of structuraforms.
These factors are beyond the Company's controlehiemmanagement continually assesses the situatidits
possible impact, in order to ensure that timelyomst and initiatives are undertaken so as to mizemany
impact on the Company’s business and operations.

Currency:In terms of currency, the Company’s business israly hedged against the risk of having a diffaére
functional currency. All petroleum industry transans are referenced to international benchmarktesgifor
crude oil and oil products in USD. All internatidqurchases and sales of crude oil and productsarducted
in USD and all sales into local markets are eithedSD prices or converted to local currency focamting
and settlement reasons using the USD referencleeodite of the transaction.

Prices Commodity price risk management is supervisedabigisk Management Committee which includes
Finance and Trading departments’ Senior Manager&mt-commodity price risk management is carriedlyut
the Finance Department under policies approvechbyBoard of Directors. The Finance Department ifleat
and evaluates financial risks in close co-operatith the Company’s operating units.

Securing continuous crude oil suppligsnancial results for the period ended 31 Decen#fd4 have been
affected by a number of factors that impacted tlengany’s trading, working capital requirements,toofs
supply and in turn funding and liquidity requirentgrin the first months of 2014 political develogmis in Iraq,
Libya and Ukraine, kept global benchmark priceigh levels ($105-115/bbl) and the availability agrtain
types of crude curtailed in the European and martiqularly the Mediterranean market. These develemts
were added to the EU/US sanctions on Iranian cmng@sed in 2012, as well as the reduced supplyrafsU
(Russian export crude) teurope and especially the Med. The combinatiorhe$¢ events kept the discount of
Urals versus Brent (a proxy for sweet-sour diffégieds) at low levels for most of the first halfgsificantly
increasing the cost of supply for sour crudes. €hgpes of crudes typically represent a signifiqaentt of the
crude feed for complex refiners such as Hellenitrdfum. Adjusting to these challenges, the Company
changed its working capital supply chain achieviminterrupted operations and supply of the Greekkata
albeit with an increase in the cost of supply.Ha second half of the year, increased crude sugghen by US
shale/tight oil production, combined with increaggdduction in Irag and the weakening of the Ewd o a
sharp drop in oil prices with global benchmarkslitdrg by more than 50% compared to June 2014 (feakn
$115/bbl to $57/bbl). These developments led tcelogost of crude, for both sweet and sour gradestaving
the competitive position of Med refiners vs. thglivbal peers and leading to higher refining margafiseit with

a significant one off inventory loss.

Debt and Refinancing Operation&iven financial market developments since 201&, kby priorities of the
Company have been the management of the Assetdiahilities’ maturity profile, funding with respéto the
completion of its strategic investment plan andiiliify risk for operations. As a result of thesey kwiority
initiatives and in line with the medium term finamg plan, Hellenic Petroleum S.A. and its subsid@r
(together the “Group”) have maintained a mixturdoofy term, medium term and short term credit faed by
taking into consideration bank and debt capital ket credit capacity as well as cash flow plannangd
commercial requirements. As a result, approxima6&9o of total debt is financed by medium to longrte
committed credit lines while the rest is financgdshort term working capital credit facilities. Dog 2014, the
Group has issued two new Eurobonds, a $400 mitlem year Eurobond maturing in May 2016 and a €325
million five year Eurobond in July 2019. The costtloe two issues was significantly lower comparedhe
marginal long term cost of funding one year agfiecting improvements in both country risk and cemp
fundamentals. Furthermore, during 2014 the Gromeggetiated term and other credit facilities in esscef €2
billion with core relationship banks and achievetproved terms regarding cost, maturity profile geaeral
terms and conditions. Thus, in 2014 the Group ooltl to diversify its funding sources, optimise dibt
liability portfolio, extend the debt maturity pri and reduce financing costs. Additional inforroatiis
disclosed in paragraph c) Liquidity risk below dote 16.

Capital management The second key priority of the Group has beenrttanagement of Assets. Overall the
Group has c. €2,9 billion of capital employed, whis driven from working capital, investment indik assets
and the Group’s investment in DEPA Group. Curresdets have been reduced mainly as a result of the
significant decline in oil prices in the secondfhafl 2014, despite the increased refined productsinies
produced and sold. These are mainly funded witheotidiabilities (incl. short term bank debt), whits used to
finance working capital (inventories and receivapléAs a result of the Group’s investment plan,irtuthe
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period 2007-2012, debt level has increased to 40-9® total capital employed while the rest is finad
through shareholders equity. The Group has stamddcing its net debt levels through utilization tbé
incremental operating cashflows, post completioth @pmeration of the new Elefsina refinery, and planseduce
these even further with the expected sale proceéds stake in DESFA, which is expected to leadower
Debt to Equity ratio, better matched Asset and ilitgbmaturity profiles as well as lower financirmgpsts.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

As explained in note 2.4, the functional and prestéan currency of the Company is the Euro. Howeireline
with industry practice in all international crudi¢ @nd oil trading transactions, underlying comntggirices are
based on international reference prices quotedSrtllars.

Foreign currency exchange risk arises on threestgpexposure:

— Financial position translation risk: Most of the inventory held by the Company is ré@drn Euro
while its underlying value is determined in USD.uEha possible devaluation of the USD against the
Euro leads to a reduction in the realisable valfieneentory included in the statement of financial
position. In order to manage this risk, a significpart of the Company’s payables (sourcing of erud
oil on credit) as well as borrowings is denominaitedJSD providing an opposite effect to the one
described above. It should be noted however, tidevin the case of USD devaluation the impact on
the statement of financial position is mitigated, dases of USD appreciation the mark-to-market
valuation of USD-denominated debt liabilities leadsa reported foreign exchange loss with no
compensating benefit as stocks continue to be diecluin the statement of financial position at ctist.
is estimated, that at 31 December 2014 if the Babweakened against the US dollar by 5% with all
other variables held constant, pre-tax results ditialve been €38 million lower, as a result of fomei
exchange losses on translation of USD-denominaagdipes and borrowings.

— Gross Margin transactions and translation risk: The fact that most of the transactions in crude oi
and oil products are based on international PI&t8® prices leads to exposure in terms of the Gross
Margin translated in Euro. Market volatility hasgatted adversely on the cost of mitigating this
exposure; as a result the Company did not actibelgjge material amounts of the Gross margin
exposure. This exposure is linearly related to @Gss margin of the Company in that the
appreciation/ depreciation of Euro vs. USD leada t@spective translation loss/ (gain) on the merio
results.

— Local subsidiaries exposureWhere the Company operates in non-Euro markets thean additional
exposure in terms of cross currency translatiomwbéeh USD (price base), Euro reporting currency and
local currency. Where possible the Company seeksmanage this exposure by transferring the
exposure for pooling at Group levels. Although matefor local subsidiaries’ operations, the overal
exposure is not considered material for the Company

(ii) Commaodity price risk

The Company’s primary activity as a refiner invavexposure to commodity prices. Changes in curoent
forward absolute price levels vs acquisition cosffect the value of inventory while exposure toinigig
margins (combination of crude oil and product ps)caffect the future cash flows of the business.

In the case of price risk, the level of exposurddatermined by the amount of priced inventory eariat the end
of the reporting period. In periods of sharp pritezline, as Company policy is to report its inventat the
lower of historical cost and net realisable valasults are affected by the reduction in the cagyialue of the
inventory. The extent of the exposure relates tliyeo the level of stocks and rate of price deseearhis
exposure is partly hedged with paper derivativeth extent that the cost of such instruments issiciered
attractive, from a risk-return point of view andbgct to the structure of the market (contango vs.
backwardation) as well as credit capacity for ldaged transactions.
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Refining margin exposure relates to the absolutellef margin generated by the operation of théneefes.
This is determined by Platt’s prices and variesaadaily basis; as an indication of the impact ® @ompany
financial results, a change in the refinery mardias a proportionate impact on the Company’s aofity.
Where possible, the Company aims to hedge theop@g production which will be sold in the futuaed hence
will be exposed to forward pricing, thus generatigher price risk upon completion of the sale.sThiowever,
is not possible to do in all market conditions, lsas a backwardated market structure, where fyttices are
below their spot levels, or when there is no credpacity for derivatives transactions.

iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s operating income and cash flows atematerially affected by changes in market interates,
given the low level of prevailing reference ratBerrowings issued at variable rates expose the @ompo
cash flow interest rate risk, while borrowings sdwat fixed rates expose the Company to fair veltezest rate
risk. The majority of the Company’s borrowings atevariable rates of interest. Depending on thel&wof net
debt at any given period of time, any change in biase interest rates (EURIBOR or LIBOR), has a
proportionate impact on the Company results. AtCRkcember 2014, if interest rates on Euro denomnthate
borrowings had been 0,5% higher with all other atalés held constant, the Company would have indutre
€10 million losses.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. Creditaisses from cash and cash equivalents, derivéitiamcial
instruments and deposits with banks and finanaiatitutions, as well as credit exposures to whddesa
customers, including outstanding receivables andnnoitted transactions. If wholesale customers are
independently rated, these ratings are used. Otbervf'there is no independent rating, risk conéissesses the
credit quality of the customer, taking into accoitst financial position, past experience and otfeators.
Individual risk limits are set based on internakaternal ratings in accordance with limits setwy board. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored

Due to market conditions, the approval of credikris subject to a more strict process involvinglalels of
senior management. A Group credit committee mogitoaterial credit exposures on a Group wide b&ss.
note 11 for further disclosure on credit risk.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management entails maintagnsufficient cash reserves and financial headrabrough
committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic urat of the underlying businesses, the Company ams
maintain flexibility in its funding operations thrgh the use of cash and committed credit facilities

Where deemed beneficial to the Company, and inrdadachieve better commercial terms (eg. bettiiry,
higher credit limits, longer payment terms), then@pany provides short term letters of credit or gongee for
the payment of liabilities arising from trade cteds. These instruments are issued using the Coyfgpeaxisting
credit lines with local and international Banksdaare subject to the approved terms and conditidrsach
Bank, regarding the amount, currency, maximum tecofateral etc. To the extent the liabilities eosd
materialise before the balance sheet date, thenaraled in the balance sheet under trade crexitor

In 2013, the Company and its subsidiaries (togetietr'Group”) refinanced a significant portion d6etGroup’s
maturing credit facilities and also issued a €500ian four- year Eurobond with an annual coupon83f
maturing in May 2017. During 2014, the Group toakantage of the improved conditions in the intaovtl
debt capital markets and the Greek banking madtletvWiing the successful recapitalisation of the ékrbanks,
in order to reduce its interest cost, diversifyfitading mix and extend its debt maturity profilthe key pillars
of the Group’s liquidity risk management strategy014 were the following:

(i) In July 2014 the Group proceeded with the earlyntdry prepayment and partial refinancing of its
syndicated €605 million term credit facility matugiin January 2016 (balance outstanding as of July
2014: €552million) with similar type facilities (6@ million), which were more reflective of recent
market and Group financial conditions.
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(i) The Group issued two additional unrated Eurobosdsléows:
. A $400 million two-year Eurobond was issued in M&14 with an annual coupon of 4,625%.
. A €325 million five-year Eurobond was issued inyJdD14 with an annual coupon of 5,25% at
99,5% of par value.

Further details of the relevant loans and refinaggilans are provided in note 16.

The table below analyses the Company’s financédilities and net-settled derivative financial llakes into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remainpegiod at the statement of financial position t@ th
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosetiértable are the contractual cash flows. Baladaeswithin
12 months equal their carrying balances as thedbgfadiscounting is not significant.

Lessthan1 Betweenl Between 2
year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
31 December 201

Borrowings 1.131.334 456.913 1.391.022 120.655
Derivative financial instruments 60.087 - - -
Trade and other payables 2.614.360 - - -

31 December 201

Borrowings 1.227.376 204.538 1.000.086 168.897
Derivative financial instruments - - - -
Trade and other payables 2.053.275 - - -

The amounts included in the table are the contahctudiscounted cash flows.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Company’s objective with respect to capitalictre, which includes both equity and debt fundisgto
safeguard its ability to continue as a going com@ard to have in place an optimal capital structtom a cost
perspective.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struefithe Company may adjust the amount of dividerald (o
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issueshares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry conventitte Company monitors capital structure and indetsss
levels on the basis of the gearing ratio. The raticalculated as net debt divided by total captaployed. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings (includiegrfent and non-current borrowings” as shown instia¢ement
of financial position) less “Cash and cash equiviseand “Available for sale financial assets”. dlotapital
employed is calculated as “Total Equity” as showthie statement of financial position plus net debt
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The gearing ratios at 31 December 2014 and 2018 agfollows:

As at

31 December 201 31 December 201
Total Borrowings (Note 16) 2.770.607 2.372.250
Less: Cash, Cash Equivalents and restricted décste (L2) (1.593.262) (739.311)
Less: Available for sale financial assets (50) (45)
Net debt 1.177.295 1.632.894
Total Equity 1.176.687 1.606.369
Total Capital Employed 2.353.982 3.239.263
Gearing ratio 50% 50%

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instrumentsiedrat fair value, by valuation method. The differkevels are
defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets feniital assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included withineleV that are observable for the asset or liability
either directly (that is, as prices) or indiredtlyat is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not lthgm observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Company’s assedsliabilities that are measured at fair value aC&cember
2014:

Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
Assets

Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - - - -

Available for sale financial assets 50 - - 50
50 - - 50
Liabilities
Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - 60.087 - 60.087
- 60.087 - 60.087
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The following table presents the Group’s assets |@fdities that are measured at fair value atCBcember
2013:

Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 balance
Assets

Derivatives held for trading - - - -

Derivatives used for hedging - 5.263 - 5.263
Available for sale financial assets 45 - - 45

45 5.263 - 5.308
Liabilities

Derivatives held for trading - - - -
Derivatives used for hedging - - - -

The fair value of financial instruments traded ativee markets is based on quoted market priceseabalance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if guptiEes are readily and regularly available frameachange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, regulatory agency and those prices represent laah
regularly occurring market transactions on an aflerigith basis. These instruments are includedviel t&.

The fair value of financial instruments that ard traded in an active market (for example, overdbanter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation téghes. These valuation techniques maximise the afise
observable market data where it is available amy ae little as possible on entity specific estiesatlf all
significant inputs required to fair value an instient are observable, the instrument is includdevial 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not da®n observable market data, the instrument laded in level
3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value finalncistruments include:
e Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similatruments.

e The fair value of commodity swaps is calculatedhespresent value of the estimated future cashsflow
based on observable yield curves.

For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 Dec@®bg, there were no transfers between levels.

The fair value of the following financial assetsldiabilities approximate their carrying amount:

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluateldare based on historical experience as adjisted
current market conditions and other factors, inicigdexpectations of future events that are beliet@dbe
reasonable under the circumstances.
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The Company makes estimates and assumptions cingéne future. The resulting accounting estimatéls

by definition, seldom equal the related actual ltss@The estimates and assumptions that have #isagn risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carryingams of assets and liabilities within the nexgfinial year
are addressed below.

(a) Income taxes

Estimates are required in determining the provisionincome taxes that the Company is subjectedhto
different jurisdictions. This requires significajutdgement. There are some transactions and catmsafor
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertdihe Company recognises liabilities for anticipatexl issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes bheildue. Where the final tax outcome of these mwmite
different from the amounts that were initially reged, such differences will impact the income tad deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such detemation is made.

(b) Provision for environmental restoration

The Company operates in the oil industry with itisgipal activities being that of exploration ansbguction of
hydrocarbons, refining of crude oil and sale of mibducts, and the production and trading of pékeodcal
products. Environmental damage caused by suchandes may require the Company to incur restoraiists
to comply with the regulations in the various jdicdions in which the Company operates, and tdesatty legal
or constructive obligation. Analysis and estimates performed by the Company together with itsrexh and
legal advisers, in order to determine the probbiliming and amount involved with probable regdiroutflow
of resources. Estimated restoration costs, for iwdisbursements are determined to be probableeceaognised
as a provision in the Company’s financial statemeWhen the final determination of such obligatianounts
differs from the recognised provisions, the Compastiatement of comprehensive income is impacted.

(c) Estimated impairment of investments and non-firdradgsets

The Company tests annually whether investments reomdfinancial assets have suffered any impairment i
accordance with its accounting policies (See na®. Zhe recoverable amounts of cash generatint @ne
determined based on value-in-use calculations. if8ignt judgement is involved in management’s
determination of these estimates.

(d) Fair value of derivatives and other financial ingtnents

The fair value of financial instruments that ar¢ traded in an active market (for example, overdbenter
derivatives) is determined by using valuation téghes. The Company uses its judgement to seleatiaty of
methods and make assumptions that are mainly lmasetarket conditions existing at the end of eagoring
period.

(e) Pension benefits

The present value of the pension obligations depemnda number of factors that are determined oactuarial
basis using a number of assumptions. The assursptieed in determining the net cost/ (income) farspens
include the discount rate. Any changes in these&imaggons will impact the carrying amount of pension
obligations. The Company determines the appropd&eount rate at the end of each year. This idrtezest
rate that should be used to determine the presdné wf estimated future cash outflows expectdaketoequired
to settle the pension obligations. In determinimg @appropriate discount rate, the Company consttersterest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denated in the currency and jurisdiction in whitle tbenefits
will be paid, and that have terms to maturity apprating the terms of the related pension liahility

Other key assumptions for pension obligations aasetl in part on current market conditions. Adddion
information is disclosed in Note 18.

(f) Provisions for legal claims

The Company has a number of legal claims pendiragnagit. Management uses its judgment to assess th
likely outcome of these claims and if it is morkely than not that the Company will lose a clailmen a
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provision is made. Provisions for legal claimsteéfuired, are measured at the present value of geament’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to sigresent obligation at the end of the reponpiegod.

(g) Change in accounting estimates

Due to the start-up of the upgraded Elefsina refintne Company conducted during 2013 a revievhefuseful
lives of its refining units (included in specialisendustrial installations). Based on technicalc#iieations for
the new units, maintenance schedules and apprgsafermed and experience since the beginning ef th
refineries start up (1970s) for older units, theeoted useful life of the refining units of the upded Elefsina
refinery is estimated up to 35 years. Also basethese technical appraisals the remaining usefes|of other
refining units of the Company have been adjustechfil. July 2013 and in general do not exceed 25syddre
Company will conduct such reviews on periodic basige with industry practices.

Years of Useful life

Prior to change After change
in estimate in estimate
Specialised industrial installations 10-25 10-35
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5 Segment information

All critical operating decisions are made by thes€ixive Committee, which reviews the Company’srimé
reporting in order to assess performance and aHomsources. Management has determined the apgrati
segments based on these reports. The committea@emnshe business from a number of measures whah
vary depending on the nature and evolution of aness segment by taking into account the risk [@ofiash

flow, product and market considerations. Informatiprovided to the committee is measured in a manner

consistent with that of the financial statements.

Information on the revenue and profit regarding@umpany’s operating segments is as follows:

Exploration
Petro- &
Year ended 31 December 2014 Note Refining chemicals Production Other Total
Sales 8.454.269 295.775 186 (46) 8.750.184
Operating profit / (loss) (364.398) 54.542 (5.792) 6744 (248.004)
Finance costs - net 25 (173.251)
Currency exchange gains / (losses) (5.540)
Profit / (Loss) before income tax (426.795)
Income tax (expense)/credit 27 113.245
Profit / (Loss) for the year (313.550)
Exploration
Petro- &
Year ended 31 December 2013 Refining chemicals Production Other Total
Sales 8.645.788 299.497 848 125 8.946.258
Operating profit / (loss) (230.563) 23.016 (5.058) 183 (196.720)
Finance costs - net 25 (164.692)
Currency exchange gains / (losses) 1.871
Profit / (Loss) before income tax (359.541
Income tax (expense)/credit 27 65.911
Profit / (Loss) for the year (293.630)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 Decentifet and 2013 are as follows:
Exploration
Petro- &
Refining chemicals Production Other Total
Total Assets 5.970.347 154.380 8.268 659.887 6.792.88:
Total Liabilities 4.799.265 47.488 11.351 758.089 5.616.19:
Exploration
Petro- &
Refining chemicals Production Other Total
Total Assets 5.955.880 166.278 7.361 56 6.129.57!
Total Liabilities 4.415.993 99.747 6.158 1.308 4.523.20
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6 Property, plant and equipment

Assets
Plant & Motor Furniture Under Cons-

Land Buildings Machinery vehicles and fixtures truction Total
Cost
As at 1 January 2013 115.396 492.721 3.399.176 14.628 .34 147.286 4.246.551
Additions - 20 725 19 2.029 81.657 84.450
Capitalised projects - 19.666 71.383 39 815 (91.903) -
Disposals - (121) (11.972) (396) (260) (40) (12.789)
Transfers & other movements - - 7.008 (13.180) (6.172)
As at 31 December 2013 115.396 512.286 3.466.320 14.290 79.928 123.820 4.312.040
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 January 2013 - 128.828 1.169.185 9.332 60.355 - 361.700
Charge for the year - 18.403 126.480 473 5.853 - 151.209
Disposals - (5) (10.956) (380) (242) - (11.583)
As at 31 December 2013 - 147.226 1.284.709 9.425 65.966 1.507.326
Net Book Value at 31 December 20: 115.39¢ 365.06( 2.181.61. 4.86¢ 13.96: 123.82( 2.804.71.
Cost
As at 1 January 2014 115.396 512.286 3.466.320 14.290 978 123.820 4.312.040
Additions - 4 6.518 48 1.876 98.584 107.030
Capitalised projects - 5.593 106.380 21 379 (112.373) -
Disposals - - (228) (52) 47) (275) (602)
Transfers & other movements - - 943 (13.311) (12.368)
As at 31 December 2014 115.396 517.883 3.579.933 14.307 82.136 96.445 4.406.100
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 January 2014 - 147.226 1.284.709 9.425 65.966 - 507.326
Charge for the year - 17.871 107.023 436 4.954 - 130.284
Disposals - - (228) (52) 47) - (327)
Transfers & other movements - - 943 - - - 943
As at 31 December 2014 - 165.097 1.392.447 9.809 70.873 1.638.226
Net Book Value at 31 December 20: 115.39¢ 352.78t 2.187.48 4.49¢ 11.26: 96.44¢ 2.767.87.

(1) The Company has not pledged any property, planeangment as security for borrowings.

(2) During 2014 an amount of €2 million (2013: €3 naifl) in respect of interest has been capitalized in
relation to Assets under construction relatinght® tefining segment, at an average borrowing réte o
6.19% (2013: 7,25%).

(3) ‘Transfers and other movements’ in assets undestoaction include transfer of spare parts for the
upgraded Elefsina units within inventories, in ademce with the amended IAS 16, as they concern
consumables. Transfers of completed IT project§1df million to intangible assets are also included
therein.
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7 Intangible assets

Cost

As at 1 January 2013

Additions

Transfers, acquisitions & other movements
As at 31 December 2013

Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1 January 2013
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2013

Net Book Value 31 December 2013

Cost

As at 1 January 2014

Additions

Transfers, acquisitions & other movem
As at 31 December 201

Accumulated Amortisation
As at 1 January 2014
Charge for the year

As at 31 December 2014

Net Book Value 31 December 2014

Computer Licences &
software Rights Total
69.38¢ 23.90¢ 93.29¢
642 9 651
3.417 B.41
73.448 23.918 97.366
63.07¢ 19.11: 82.18¢
3.202 1.203 4.405
66.276 20.314 86.590
7.172 3.604 10.776
73.448 23.918 97.366
362 391 75z
9.19¢ 35¢ 9.55¢
83.00¢ 24.66" 107.67.
66.27¢ 20.31¢ 86.59(
8.010 1.596 9.606
74.286 21.910 96.196
8.720 2.757 11.477

(1) ‘Transfers and other movements’ relate to compléfedoftware projects capitalised during 2014 and
2013 and thus transferred from in assets undetmation.

(2) ‘Licenses & Rights’ include net exploration licensosts relating to the Patraikos Gulf area (N8 2
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8 Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint wéures

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Beginning of the year 654.068 660.389
(Decrease) / Increase in share capital of subgdia 5.758 4.664
Impairment of investments - (10.985)
End of the year 659.826 654.068
Country of
Name Participating interest Incorporation
Asprofos SA 100,0% Greece
Diaxon ABEE 100,0% Greece
EKO ABEE 100,0% Greece
ELPET Valkaniki SA 63,0% Greece
HELPE - Apollon Shipping Co 100,0% Greece
HELPE International AG 100,0% Austria
HELPE - Poseidon Shipping Co 100,0% Greece
HELPE Finance PlIc 100,0% United Kingdom
Helpe Renewable Energy Sources S.A. 100,0% Greece
Global Albania SA 99,9% Albania
Public Gas Corporation of Greece S.A. (DEPA) 35,0% edbe
ARTENIUS S.A. 35,0% Greece
Athens Airport Fuel Pipeline Company S.A. (EAKAA) 5% Greece
ELPEDISON B.V. 5,0% Netherlands
Thraki SA 25,0% Greece
VANCO 100,0% Greece
EANT 9,0% Greece
STPC 16,7% Greece
NAPC 16,7% Greece
Greek Association of Independent Energy Producers , 796 Greece

a) During 2013 the shareholders of Artenius Hellas.SaA35% associate of the Company, approved the

liquidation plan of the company’s net assets. Assallt the Company has written off its investmeng il

million in other operating expenses (see note 24).

b) The Company participates in the following jointlgntrolled operations with other third parties riglgtto
exploration and production of hydrocarbons in Geesed abroad:

Gas Monte (Montenegro, Blocks 1 & 2)

c) Sale of DESFA

Vegas West Obayed Limited (Egypt, West Obayed)
Edison International — Petroceltic Resources (GreBatraikos Gulf)
Calfrac well services (Greece, Sea of Thrace caimes

On the 16February 2012, HELPE and the HRADF (jointly theell8rs”) agreed to launch a joint sale
process of their shareholding in DEPA Group aimtogsell in total 100% of the supply and trading
activities and the shareholding of regional supgynpanies (DEPA S.A. and EPAs) and 66% of the high
pressure transmission network (DESFA). This agergiwas approved by HELPE’s EGM, dated on the 30
January 2012 and the decision specifically requinas any such transaction will be subject to thpraval

of a new EGM.
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The sales process resulted in three non-bindirgrofieceived on Bovember 2012 and at the final stage,
one binding offer for the purchase of 66% of DES$hares by SOCAR (Azerbaijan’s Oil and Gas National
Company). SOCAR's final offer is for €400 millidor 66% of DESFA, i.e. €212,1 million for HELPE's
35% effective shareholding. Given that at pre§H#BSEFA SA is a 100% subsidiary of DEPA, in order to
complete the transaction, DESFA will be “unbundlatitough a share distribution (treated as capital
reduction of DEPA S.A.), to the two existing shaielers/sellers (i.e. HELPE 35% and HRADF 65%).
Thus, once all approvals from the competent auiberare received, SOCAR will buy 35% directly from
HELPE and 31% from HRADF.

On 2 August 2013 the Board of Directors of HELPEgidered the offer for the sale of its 35% effeztiv
interest in DESFA as acceptable, and called fdextraordinary General Meeting of the shareholdétb®
Company to approve the transaction. The EGM ofstiereholders of the Company held on 2 September
2013 approved the transaction.

Prior to the Board of Director's meeting, the poexd day, on 1 August 2013 the board of directors of
HRADF had unanimously accepted the final offer GiCAR.

The Share Purchase Agreement for the sale of 66WESFA’s share capital was signed by HRADF,
HELPE and SOCAR on 21 December 2013. Accordingdpito $PA the rights and obligations of the parties
are conditional upon the occurrence of certain evé@onditions) such as the merger clearance of the
transaction by the EU or national competition atithes (as applicable) and the certification of #Shy

the Regulatory Authority for Energy of the Hellemkepublic ("RAE") in accordance with article 65 lof
4001/2011 ("Energy Law"). RAE issued its finaltdf@ration decision on 29 September 2014. Notificat

of the transaction to DG for Competition of the @agan Commission took place on 1 October 2014. On 5
November 2014, the European Commission opened depth investigation. The extent of commitments
which may be required to be undertaken by SOCAR thred exact time required for the European
Commission to issue a clearance decision cannobiieolled by the parties.

Although the parties undertake valid commitmentsrupigning of the SPA, the effectiveness of thalifyt

of the provisions of the SPA (including the tramsiéshares and the payment of the consideratempams
subject to conditions, some of which lie beyond tmntrol or diligent behavior of the parties and,
consequently, the completion of the transactionaiemsuspended and depends on the satisfactiamcbf s
conditions.

The Group consolidates DEPA on an equity basis tad carrying value of the investment in the
consolidated financial statements reflects HELPE386 share of the net asset value of the DEPA group
which as at 31 December 2014 is €590 million. Femtiore the carrying value in HELPE S.A financial
statements for the DEPA group is €237 million.

Given that the transaction can only be completeghuceiving the approval of the relevant competent
authorities, and given the timing of such approwald the unbundling process that is still to bectaited,
management considers it appropriate to maintaipdiiey of including DEPA Group as an associatéhat
date of this financial information.

9 Loans, Advances and Long term assets

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Loans and advances 137.900 137.900
Other long term assets 5.080 4.842
Total 142.980 142.742

Loans and advances relate to a three-year bonddb&138 million extended in 2013 to EKO S.A., 100%
subsidiary of Hellenic Petroleum S.A.

The balances included in the above categories 8% @fecember 2014 are discounted at a rate of 7 (20%3:
7,27%).
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10 Inventories

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201

Crude oi 118.51¢ 223.57:
Refined products and semi-finished prod 339.18! 578.31(
Petrochemica 27.10¢ 25.50(
Consumable materials and ot 69.24¢ 62.95¢
- Less: Provision for Consumables and spare (10.270 (8.300
Total 543.783 882.040

The cost of inventories recognised as an expensénatuded in “Cost of sales” for 2014 is equakE® billion

(2013: €8 hillion). It should be highlighted thatedto the decrease of crude oil and oil produdgteprduring the
last part of 2014 and subsequently after the yadr-the Company has reported a material loss grisom

inventory valuation during the year which is alsfiected in a write-down of the year end valuesva. This

effect reverses in subsequent periods as crug®iodés increase and stock held at the lower of cp8tRV are
sold at higher prices.

The Company is obliged to keep crude oil and refipeoducts stocks in order to fulfill the EU reaarivent for
compulsory Stock obligations (90 days stock dikexjtias legislated by Greek Law 3054/2002.

11 Trade and other receivables

As at

31 December 201 31 December 201
Trade receivables 394.399 461.082
- Less: Provision for impairment of receivables 120 (93.926)
Trade receivables ne 298.49 367.15¢
Other receivables 603.63¢ 496.04:
- Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (10.871 (10.283
Other receivables ne 592.76! 485.75¢
Deferred charges and prepayments 7.79¢ 12.64¢
Total 899.057 865.560

As part of its working capital management the Comypatilises factoring facilities to accelerate tiadlection of
cash from its customers in Greece. Non-recourderiag is excluded from balances shown above.

Other receivables include balances in respect off Vi#scome tax prepayment, advances to suppliers and
advances to personnel. This balance includes adsant €327 million extended to Hellenic Petroleum
International A.G. (a Group company) for the transéf 100% of the share capital of Hellenic Fuel8.S
(currently a direct subsidiary of Hellenic Petratednternational A.G.) at book value. The conclusafnthe
transfer is subject to final contract signing.

Other receivables also include an amount of €54iamil(31 December 2013: €54 million) of VAT appralve
refunds, which has been withheld by the customiseih respect of a dispute about stock shortages fote

32). Against this action the Company has filed ec#fir legal objection claim and expects to fulgcover this

amount following the conclusion of the relevantdegroceedings.

The fair values of trade and other receivables@pprate their carrying amount.
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The table below shows the segregation of traddvaiskes:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Total trade receivables 394.399 461.082
Amounts included above, which are past due, doluaifd impaired:
Past due, not impaired receivables balance 125.814 124.761
Past due, doubtful & impaired receivables balance 9@5 87.149

221.716 211.910
Allowance for bad debts 95.902 93.926

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgrtiate is the fair value of each class of recewaméntioned
above. Allowance is made for receivables that angbtful of collection and have been assessed gt will
result in a loss, net of any respective securiitesollaterals obtained.

As of 31 December 2014, the overdue days of tradeivables that were past due but not impairedaare
follows:

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Up to 30 days 98.80¢ 89.68¢
30 - 90 days 3.52( 6.10:
Over 90 days 23.48¢ 28.97:
125.814 124.761

Total

As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, the overdue daysubtful receivables are as follows:

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201

Up to 30 days
30 - 90 days
Over 90 days

95.90: 87.14¢
95.902 87.149

Total

It was assessed that a portion of the receivaldesdcbe recovered, through settlements, legal ast@and
securing of additional collaterals.

The movement in the provision for impairment ofisaeceivables is set out below:

As at
31 December 201 31 December 2013
Balance at 1 January 93.926 92.515
Charged / (credited) to the income statement:
- Additional provisions 1.976 1.411
95.902 93.926

Balance at 31 December

The movement in the provision for impairment hasrbécluded in selling and distribution expenseshia
statement of comprehensive income.
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12 Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Cash at Bank and in Ha 697.60( 217.84¢
Short term bank depos 695.66: 321.46:
Cash and cash equivalen 1.393.26: 539.31:
Restricted Cas 200.00( 200.00(
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash D3.262 739.311

Restricted cash pertains to a cash collateral geraent to secure a €200 million loan concluded Witleaus
Bank, in relation to the Company’s €200 million Hiac Agreement with the European Investment Baftk,
which Pireaus Bank has provided a guarantee. Tlasagtee matured on 15 June 2014 and has beenesnew
for one additional year (note 16). The effect of than and the deposit is a grossing up of thermsnt of
financial position but with no effect to the Netl@eosition.

The weighted average effective interest rate #seateporting date on cash and cash equivalents was

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201

Euro 1,00% 0,51%
uUsD 0,80% 0,50%
13 Share capital
Number of
Shares
(authorised Share Share
and issued) Capital premium Total
As at 1 January & 31 December 2013 305.635.185 666528 353.796 1.020.081
As at 31 December 2014 305.635.185 666.285 353.796 a3

All ordinary shares were authorised, issued arlgt pdid. The nominal value of each ordinary shar€2.18 (31
December 2013; €2.18).

Share options

During the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Hellerifetroleum S.A. held on 25 May 2005, a share option
scheme was approved, with the intention to link naenber of share options granted to managementthéth
results and performance of the Company. Subseq@Ms have approved and granted the share optidms. T
vesting period is 1 November to 5 December of thary 2014 — 2018. At the 2014 AGM, the shareholders
approved several changes to the share option progtaich incorporated more recent legal and tax ghan
without altering the net effect in terms of impaatresults or the benefit to the participants.
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Share options outstanding at the year-end haviollogving expiry date and exercise prices:

Grant Vesting Expiry Exercise
Date Date Date Price No. of share options as at
5 December in € per share 31 December 201 31 December 201
2008 2010-14 2014 11,01 - 339.561
2009 2011-15 2015 7,62 1.616.054 1.616.054
2012 2014-18 2018 4,52 1.479.933 1.479.933
Total 3.095.987 3.435.548

No stock options have been exercised during 201dudng the previous year, due to the negativetioziahip
between the exercise price and the share marleg guring the respective vesting periods.

Movements in the number of share options outstandimd their related weighted average exercise pace as
follows:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Average Average
Exercise Exercise
Price in € Price in €
per shar Options per shar Options
At 1 January 6,62 3.435.548 7,08 3.932.225
Granted - - - -
Exercised - - - -
Lapsed 11,01 (339.561) 10,30 (496.677)
At 31 Decembe 6,14 3.095.98 6,6z 3.435.54i

The value of lapsed stock options that were traresfieto retained earnings in 2014 is €0,3 millidhe total
expense recognised during 2014 in the statemesdraprehensive income for share based compensatiéh 3

million (2013: €0,3 million).
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14 Reserves

Share-base(
Statutory Special Hedging payment Tax Other
reserve reserves reserve reserve reserves reserves Total

Balance at 1 January 2013 118.668 86.495 (36.974) 3.889 351.322 - 523.400
Cash flow hedges: 21

- Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow he - - 9.40¢ - - - 9.40¢

- De-recognition of gains/(losses) on hec
through comprehensive income - - 31.465 - - - 31.465
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined ben
pension plar (2.349) (2.349)
Share-based payme 13 - - - (226 - - (226
Balance at 31 December 2013 118.668 86.495 3.895 3.663 351.322 (2.349) 561.694
Cash flow hedges: 21

- Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow he - - (44.773 - - - (44.773

- De-recognition of gains/(losses) on hec
through comprehensive income - - (3.586) - - - (3.586)
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined ben
pension plans - - - - - (3.939) (3.939)
Share-based payments 13 - - - (24) - - (24)
Distribution of tax free reserv 30 - - - - (64.277 - (64.277
Transfer of tax on distributed reser - - - - (15.101 - (15.101
Balance at 31 December 2014 118.668 86.495 (44.464) 3.639 271.944 (6.288) 429.994

The movement in the year-end hedging reserve iwrshiet of tax of €16.991 (2013: €10.611) — refeNtute
27.

Statutory reserves

Under Greek law, corporations are required to feares minimum of 5% of their annual net profit aflected in
their statutory books to a statutory reserve wmtdh reserve equals one third of outstanding steguital. This
reserve cannot be distributed, but can be usetffidet@ccumulated losses.

Special reserves

Special reserves primarily relate to reserves ragisirom tax revaluations which have been includedhe
company accounts in accordance with the relevagisliion in prior years. Where considered appedpri
deferred tax provisions are booked in respecteddhreserves.

Tax free reserves
Tax free reserves include:

0] Tax deferred reserves are retained earnings whaste Imot been taxed with the prevailing corporate
income tax rate as allowed by Greek law under waristatutes. Certain of these retained earninds wil
become liable to tax at the rate prevailing attime of distribution to shareholders or converdimishare
capital.

(i)  Partially taxed reserves are retained earningsstwhave been taxed at a rate less than the coepiavat
rate as allowed by Greek law. Certain of thesdrrethearnings will be subject to the remaininguaxo
the corporate tax rate prevailing at the time atriiution to shareholders or conversion to shagstal.
During 2014 part of these reserves was distributedhe shareholders, in line with law 4172/2013.
Further information is disclosed in note 30.
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15 Trade and other payables

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Trade payables 2.519.287 1.978.166
Accrued Expenses 58.18: 39.83:
Other payables 36.89! 35.27¢
Total 2.614.360 2.053.275

Trade creditors include overdue amounts in respectude oil imports from Iran which were receiveidring

the period between December 2011 and March 20p2ra®f a long term contract with NIOC. Despiteeated
attempts to settle the payment for these cargoesglthe early part of 2012, through the internagilobanking
system, it was not possible to do so. This is duth¢ fact that payments to Iranian banks and statities are
not accepted for processing by the Internationakimgy system due to EU sanctions (Council RegutafteU)

No. 267/2012 of 23 March 2012). The Company hag datified its supplier of this restriction on pagnts and
the inability to accept further crude oil cargoesier the contract, which is due to the EU sanctimsng legal
constraints outside its control. As a result navéeiles of Iranian crude oil or payments have tagkate post 30
June 2012, which was the EU imposed deadline.

In line with standard industry practice the Compargy issue letters of credit or letters of guararitesuppliers
in order to be able to obtain better credit or cargial terms.

Other payables include amounts in respect of pbgral other staff related costs, social securitygakions and
sundry taxes.

Accrued expenses and deferred income include timaaed cost of the CQOemission rights required under the
corresponding environmental legislation amountm@3 million (2013: €4 million).

16 Borrowings

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Non-current borrowings

Bank borrowings 321.890 366.334
Bond loan 1.438.603 860.096
Non-current borrowings 1.760.493 1.226.430
Current borrowings
Short term bank borrowings 965.670 1.022.446
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings 44,44« 123.37:
Total current borrowings 1.010.114 1.145.820
Total borrowings 2.770.607 2.372.250
The maturity of non-current borrowings is as folkow
As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Between 1 and 2 years 371.930 123.374
Between 2 and 5 years 1.244.452 870.056
Over 5 years 144,111 233.000

1.760.493 1.226.430
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Gross borrowings of the Company by maturity aslab8cember 2014 and 31 December 2013 are summarised
on the table below:

Balance as at
31 December 201 31 December 201

Maturity (€ million) (€ million)
HPF Syndicated credit facility €140 million Jan 2016 - -
Syndicated Bond loan €465 million Jan 2016 - 451
HPF Syndicated credit facility €40 million Jul 2016 - -
HPF Syndicated credit facility €10 million Jul 2018 - -
Syndicated Bond loan €350 million Jul 2018 338 -
Bond loan €400 million Dec 2015 225 225
European Investment Bank ("EIB") Term loan Jun 2022 333 378
HPF Bond Loan €488m May 2017 456 488
HPF Bond Loan US$ 397,6m May 2016 327 -
HPF Bond Loan €317,6m Jul 2019 318 -
Bilateral lines Various 774 830
Total 2,771 2.372

Hellenic Petroleum and its subsidiaries (the “Gfyumaintains a central treasury which coordinatesl a
controls all subsidiaries’ funding and cash managgractivities. To this extent, Hellenic PetroleBmance plc
(“HPF") was established in November 2005 in the Uals a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hellenic Petrakeu
S.A. to act as the central treasury vehicle ofHk#enic Petroleum Group.

1. &2. Term Loans

In January 2013, the Group concluded two 3-yeadicfacilities with identical terms and conditiomsth a
Group of Greek and international banks for a tat@ount of €605 million (HPF €140 million and Helien
Petroleum SA €465 million) with gradual amortizatidn July 2014, the Group proceeded with the early
voluntary prepayment and partial refinancing of féglities. As a result, the Group voluntarily egg a notional
loan amount of €152 million and concluded two newdd facilities with similar terms and conditioss

follows:

a) and b) A €50 million syndicated credit facilitgncluded by Hellenic Petroleum Finance plc with th
guarantee of Hellenic Petroleum S.A., which is cosgal of two tranches, one of €40 million maturing
in July 2016 and one of €10 million maturing inyJAD18. Both tranches are redeemable at maturity.

¢) A €350 million syndicated bond loan concludedHigllenic Petroleum S.A. with the guarantee of
Hellenic Petroleum Finance plc maturing in July 0The outstanding balance of the bond loan at 31
December 2014 was €338 million.

3. Bond Loan of €400 million

In April 2012, Hellenic Petroleum S.A. conclude€400 million syndicated bond loan agreement maguan
30 June 2013, with the aim to finance general aatgopurposes. The Company has exercised the edens
options provided by the agreement, with the coneéatl participating banks and the current majudiate is 30
December 2015, with a six-month extension optiohe Total amount outstanding under the facility &t 3
December 2014 was €225 million (31 December 20235€nillion).

4. EIB Term Loans

On 26 May 2010, Hellenic Petroleum S.A. signed tean agreements (Facilities A and B) with the Eeap
Investment Bank for a total amount of €400 milli@200 million each). The purpose of the loans wafitance
part of the investment program relating to the aggrof the Elefsina Refinery. Both loans have auntgtof 12
years with amortization that commenced in Decer@®d3 and similar terms and conditions. FacilitysRiiedit
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enhanced by a commercial bank guarantee (see 8@t hiis is normal practice for EIB lending partely
during the construction phase of large projects.afmount of €22 million was repaid in December 2@h8 a
total amount of €45 million was repaid during 20R& at 31 December 2014, the outstanding loan balan
amounted to €333 million. (31 December 2013: €318am).

5. HPF Bond Loan €488m (Eurobond €500m)

In May 2013 HPF issued a €500 million four-year dhond with an 8% annual coupon, maturing in May7201
The notes are guaranteed by Hellenic Petroleum, Sate redeemable at maturity and are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Subsequently the Compamgluded a €488 million syndicated bond loan
agreement with HPF and the proceeds were usecpapexisting indebtedness of €225 million andgemeral
corporate purposes. As at 31 December 2014 thdaodiag loan balance amounted to €456 million (31
December 2013: €488 million).

6. HPF Bond Loan $397.6m (Eurobond $400m)

In May 2014, HPF issued a two-year $400 million dhand with a 4,625% annual coupon, maturing in May
2016. The notes are guaranteed by Hellenic Petrol8LA., are redeemable at maturity and are listedhe
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Subsequently the Compangluded a $397,6 million syndicated bond loan
agreement with HPF and the proceeds were usedefugrgl corporate purposes. As at 31 December 2G4 t
euro equivalent outstanding loan balance amout€327 million.

7. HPF Bond Loan €317,6 m (Eurobond €325 m)

In July 2014 HPF issued a €325 million five-yeardhond, with a 5,25% annual coupon, maturing iry Jul
2019. The notes, are guaranteed by Hellenic Petrol8.A., are redeemable at the option of the issuduly
2017 and are listed on the Luxembourg Stock ExchaBgbsequently the Company concluded a €317,&mill
syndicated bond loan agreement with HPF and theepas were used to prepay existing indebtednesfand
general corporate purposes. As at 31 December @ldutstanding loan balance amounted to €318amilli

8. Bilateral lines

The Company also has in place credit facilitiehwiarious banks to predominantly finance its wogkaapital
needs. As at 31 December 2014, the outstandingdmlaf such loans amounted to €774 million (31 Deuer
2013: €830 million).

Certain debt agreements that the Company entersimiude financial covenants, the most signiftaainwhich
are the maintenance of certain ratios at Groupl lagefollows: “Net Debt/EBITDA”, “EBITDA/Net Interst”
and “Net Debt/Net Worth”. Management monitors tleefgrmance of the Group to ensure compliance wi¢h t
above covenants.

The loan analysis is as follows:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Revolving Credit Facilities 2.029.938 1.574.481
Term loans 740.669 797.769
Total borrowings 2.770.607 2.372.250
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The weighted average effective interest margiret éise reporting date were as follows:

As at
31 December 2014
€ uUss
Bank Borrowings (short-term)
- Floating Euribor + margin 5,37%
Bank Borrowings (long-term)
- Floating Euribor + margin 7,94% -
- Floating Libor + margin - 5,62%
As at
31 December 2013
€ uUss$

Bank Borrowings (short-term)
- Floating Euribor + margin 6,77% -

Bank Borrowings (long-term)
- Floating Euribor + margin 4,46% R

The carrying amounts of the Company's borrowingiwhapproximate their fair value are denominatethim
following currencies:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Euro 2.443.122 2.372.250
US dollar 327.485 -
Total borrowings 2.770.607 2.372.250

17 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areedfighen there is a legally enforceable right teetffcurrent tax
assets against current tax liabilities and wherdtferred income taxes relate to the same fisahabaity.

The gross movement on the deferred income tax Adsattility) is as follows:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Beginning of the year 25.056 (40.872)
Income statement recovery / (charge) 116.043 75.712
Charged / (released) to equity 18.373 (9.784)
Transfer of tax on distributed reserves to Curtaxt 15.101 -
End of year 174.573 25.056
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Deferred tax relates to the following types of dedble / (taxable) temporary differences:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Intangible and tangible fixed assets (127.553) (107.748)
Inventory valuation 2.670 2.158
Environmental provision 1.405 1.086
Unrealised exchange gains - (1.426)
Employee benefits provision 19.939 19.449
Derivative financial instruments at fair value 16.534 474)
Net operating losses carried forward 219.677 125.622
Net interest cost carried forward (thin capitaiisa} 41.152 -
Tax free reserves (law 4172/2013) - (15.101)
Other temporary differences 749 1.490
Net deferred income tax asset/(liability) 174.573 25.056
Deferred income tax liabilities (138.261) (138.184)
Deferred income tax assets 312.834 163.240

Other temporary differences include mostly temppuifferences on various receivables provisionsval as
the provisions for unaudited tax years.

Deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losy-farwards are recognised if it is probable tHayt can be
offset against future taxable profits. As of 31 Beber 2014 a deferred tax asset on tax loss carwafds
amounting to €220 million (2013: €126 million) weecognized, since, on the basis of the approvethéss
plan, Management considers it probable that thasée offset against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax in relation to special or tax freeergss is calculated to the extent that the Comjbertigves it is
more likely than not to be incurred and is entéreithe related accounts.

In December 2013 Law 4172/2013 was enacted thatsegba tax of 15% upon the distribution or cazgdion
of specific tax free reserves until 31/12/2013.tlsition or capitalization of these reserves i12@vould result
in a tax of 19% and if not distributed or capitedisin 2014, these reserves would have to be sedgafinst
accumulated tax losses. From 1st January 2015, axieg are no longer allowed to maintain tax-fresinees.
In this respect, the Company raised a possiblerdefaax liability provision of €15m as at 31 Dedsmn 2013,
via a charge to the income statement. An EGM held®December 2014 approved the distribution adehtax
free reserves. Accordingly the 19% payable tax, w@rting to €15 million was transferred from deferted to
current tax liabilities and will be paid within thieadlines prescribed by the relevant law proviion

In 2014, thin capitalization rules as per art. #%av 4172/2013 were applied for the first time,axbby the net
interest expenses in 2014 are deductible up to 60%BITDA. This resulted in deferred tax assets€dfl
million that can be offset against future taxabiefips.
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18 Retirement benefit obligations

The table below outlines where the Company’s neténet benefit amounts and activity are includedha t

financial statements.

Statement of Financial Position obligations for:

Pension benefits

Total as per Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Comprehensive Income charge for:

Pension benefits

Total as per Statement of Comprehensive Income

Remeasurements for:
Pension benefits

Total as per Statement of Other Comprehensive Incom

As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

74.495 72.527

74.495 20527

For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

13.628 27.390

13.82 27.390

For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

The amounts recognised in the statement of finhpoisition are as follows:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Deficit of funded plans

Present value of unfunded obligations

Liability in the Statement of Financial Position

5.323 3.175
5.323 3.175
As at

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

5.00% 6.407
(203) (180)
4.800 6.222

69.69: 66.30

74495 72.527

The plans are final salary pension plans. The lefiélenefits provided depends on members’ lengtbeofice

and remuneration.
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The movement in the defined benefit obligation ®2@t3 and 2014 is as follows:

As at 1 January 201.

Current service cost
Interest expense/(incon

Past service costs and (gains)/losses on settle
Statement of comprehensive income char

Remeasurements

- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts inclutdéaterest
expense/(income
- (Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumgtion

- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions
- Experience (gains)/loss

Benefits paid directly by the Company/Contributiqrasd by the
Company

Benefit payments from the plan

As at 31 December 201

Current service cost
Interest expense/(income)

Past service costs and (gains)/losses on settle
Statement of comprehensive income char

Remeasurements

- Return on plan assets, excluding amounts inclimiéaterest
expense/(income

- (Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions
- Experience (gains)/losses

Benefits paid directly by the Company/Contributiqrasd by the
Compan

Benefit payments from the plan

As at 31 December 201

Present Value Fair Value of

of Obligation Plan Assets Total
81.78: (660; 81.123
4.151 - 4.151
3.13¢ (19) 3.117
20.12: - 20.12;
27.409 (19) 27.390
- 14 14
0 - 0
.821 - 1.821
1.34C - 1.34(
3.161 14 3.175
(38.840) (321) (39.161)
(806) 806 -
72.707 (180; 72.527
3.825 - 3.825
2.670 (53) 2.617
7.18¢ - 7.18¢
13.681 (53) 13.628
- 63 63
.843 - 3.844
1.416 - 1.416
5.260 63 5.323
(14.332 (2.651 (16.983
(2.618) 2.618 -
74.69¢ (203, 74.49¢
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The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted ipartsenefits is as follows:

Less than Between Between Over5
Balance at 31 December 2014 ayear 1-2years 2-5years years Total

Pension Benefits 3.238 1.906 6.317  90.184 101.645

Less than Between Between Over5
Balance at 31 December 2013 ayear 1-2years 2-5years years Total

Pension Benefits 2.988 2.484 11.082 92.757 109.311

Plan assets comprise the following:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Quoted Unquot Total % Quoted Unquot Total %

Equity Instruments 10 - 10 5% 7 - 7 4%
Debt Instruments:
- Government bonds 90 - 90 44% 79 - 79 44%
- Corporate bonds 18 - 18 9% 16 - 16 9%
Investment funds 85 - 85 42% 78 - 78 43%
Total 203 - 203 180 - 180

The principal actuarial assumptions used were:

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Discount Rat 3,25% 3,75%
Future Salary Increas 0,50% 0,50%
Inflation 0,50% 0,50%

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligatianchanges in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on Defined Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease ir

assumption assumption assumption
Discount Rat 0,5% -5,15% 5,58%
Future Salary Increas 0,5% 5,67% -5,28%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a ehisngn assumption while holding all other assuonsi
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occurdachanges in some of the assumptions may be atadelWhen
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefiligation to significant actuarial assumptions siaene method
(present value of the defined benefit obligatioltaiated with the projected unit credit methodtet end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calogldhe pension liability recognized within thetstaent of

financial position.

Expected contributions to defined benefit planstfar following year are €0,9 million. The weightaderage
duration of the defined benefit obligation is 1
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19 Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Included therein are provisions for legal casesreinethe likely outcome will not be in favour ofetiCompany.
Litigation provisions amounted to €3 million as3if December 2014 and 2013.

20 Other long term liabilities

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Government grants 11.09( 13.367
Other long term liabilities 52¢ 52¢
Total 11.618 13.895

Government grants

Advances by the Government to the Company’s estitiéate to property, plant and equipment. Amotitza
for 2014 amounted to €2,3 million (2013: €1,4 roit).

Other long term liabilities

Other long term liabilities relate to sundry opéergtitems and risks arising from the Company’s wady
activities.

21 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives designated as Cash Flow Hedges

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Commodity Derivative type Notional Amount Assets Liabiities Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
MT'000 Bbls'000 € € MT'000 Bbls'000 € €
Commodity Swaps - 2.916 - 60.087 - 2.521 5.263
2.916 - 60.087 - 2.521 5.263
Total - 60.087 5.263
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Non-current portion
Commodity swaps
Current portion
Commodity swaps - 60.08 5.26:
60.08: 5.26:
Total - 60.087 5.263

Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges

During the year ended 31 December 2014 lossesféraed to the statement of comprehensive incomatimg
to contracts that were settled during the year,ar@nl to €3.586 (2013: €1.806 loss).

During the year ended 31 December 2013 amountsféraed to the statement of comprehensive incomede
designated hedges were losses of €29.659, nekofvtdch related to commodity price swaps for tHeféna
refinery upgrade settled during the period.

The remaining cash flow hedges are highly effectind the movement in their fair value, amounting toss of
€44.773 net of tax (31 December 2013: €9.402 gainof tax), is included in the hedging reserve (dete 14).
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the repgrtiate is the fair value of the derivative assethé statement
of financial position.

22 Employee Costs

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 201

Wages and salaries 116.02° 130.37¢
Social security costs 29.96¢ 36.01¢
Pension costs 6.903 7.880
Other employment benefits 16.636 36.990
Total 169.535 211.267

Other employment benefits include medical insurageg¢ering and transportation expenses. They aldade
expenses paid to employees as part of the volumiimement scheme (VRS) which are approximately €7
million (2013: €20 million), included in ‘Other opating income/ (expenses) and other gains / (I9s¢ese
Note 24). The value of shared — based compensatié@,3 million (2013: €0,3 million) is also inclad therein
(see Note 13).

23 Exploration and development expenses

Capital expenditures on exploration and developraetitities are expensed as incurred and relatelynto the
following Concessions:

® Exploration operations in West Obayed Block, Westeesert, Egypt under a Production and Sharing
Agreement with EGPC in a joint operation betweetidiéc Petroleum (30%) and Vegas West Obayed
Limited (70%, Operator)

(i)  Exploration operations in the Gulf of Patraikos $&drea, offshore Greece in a joint operation betwe
Hellenic Petroleum (33,3%, Operator), Edison Iragional SpA (33,3%) and Petroceltic Resources Plc
(33,3%). The Lease Agreement for the offshore afethe Gulf of Patraikos has been ratified by the
Greek Parliament and has been published in thekGBesernment Gazette as Law No. 4299 — Vol.A,
221-3/10/2014. In 2014 net exploration license £ostating to the Patraikos Gulf area of €0.4 wnili
were capitalised in intangible assets (Note 7).
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24 Other operating income / (expenses) and other opedrag gains / (losses)

Other operating income/(expenses) and other g4lasdes) are analysed as follows:

For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Income from grants' amortisation 2.27i 1.36(
Services to third parties 1.87¢ 1.45z2
Rental income 1.593 2.608
Voluntary retirement scheme cost (6.925 (20.225
Reversal of unused provisions 747 1.30z
Impairment losses from associates - (10.985
Other income / (expense) (742 (3.665
Other operating income / (expenses) - net (1.174) (28.153)
Losses on derivative financial instruments recfaesbirom cast

flow hedge - (40.080
Other operating (losses) / gains - net - (40.080)

Other operating income / (expenses) — net, incitaties which do not arise as a result of the tradictiyities of
the Company (e.g. rental income and sales of peedagervices to subsidiaries), as well as additiaoats
incurred in respect of the voluntary retirementesobs (VRS) effected during 2014 and 2013.

In 2013 impairment losses of €11 million relatimgthe write down of the Company’s investment inehitis
Hellas S.A which started liquidation proceeding=e(sote 8) were also included.

Other operating gains / (losses) in 2013 includsdés from reclassification of cash flow hedges.

25 Finance (Expenses)/ Income-Net

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Interest income 20.58¢ 16.11¢
Interest expense and similar charges (193.840 (180.808
Finance costs - net (173.251) (164.692)

In addition to the finance cost shown above, anwarmof €2 million of finance costs (2013: €3 mitlijphave
been capitalised for the year ended 31 Decembet, 2&lexplained in Note 6.

During 2014, the Company achieved significant @astings both in its term loan and revolving créaldilities,
the full effect of which will be reflected in théfncial year 2015. At the same time the Companintaias a
cash reserve in line with its liquidity risk managent policy with a negative carry cost in excesS%fp.a. Part
of the cash reserve is temporarily used as casttex! in respect of EIB loan facility (Note 12).

26  Currency exchange gains / (losses)

Foreign currency exchange losses of €6 millionteea marked-to-market losses on US$ denominatausidue
to the US$ strengthening against the Euro as @e&dember 2014, compared to the beginning of the yea
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27 Income tax expense

For the year ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Current tax 2.79¢ 9.801
Deferred tax (Note 17) (116.043 (75.712
Total (113.245) (65.911)

The basic tax rate used for Hellenic Petroleum 8i#s 26% for the year ended 31 December 2014 ahgl 20

The Company’s full tax audits for the financial 2002 — 2009 have been finalised, nevertheles€timpany has
appealed for part of the additional taxes chargedfurther information see Note 32.

The Company has not undergone a full tax auditiferfinancial year ended 31 December 2010.

Since the year ended 31 December 2011, all Greeipanies have to be audited on an annual basisdiy th
statutory auditor in respect of compliance with law, correct submission of tax returns and idémtfon of
any unrecorded tax liabilities in the accounts.sTéuidit leads to the issuance of a Tax Certifigdieh, under
certain conditions, substitutes the full tax adgjtthe tax authorities and allows the company éattits tax
position as fully compliant and final. The Compamgs undergone this tax audit for 2011, 2012 and3201
obtaining unqualified Tax Certificates.

Provisional VAT audits have been concluded up td atluding December 2013. During 2014 receivable
amounts, mainly from VAT, of €58 million were auglit and confirmed, which the Company utilizes toafét
current tax liabilities.

Management believes that no additional materialligbility will arise as a result of open tax yearger and
above the tax liabilities and provisions recognisethe financial statements for the year ended&tember
2014.

The tax (charge) / credit relating to componentstbér comprehensive income, is as follows:

For the year ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Tax Tax
(charge)/ (charge)/
Before tax credit After tax Before tax credit After tax

Cash flow hedges (65.350) 16.991  (48.359) 51.480 (10.611) 40.869
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit pem
plans (5.323) 1.384 (3.939) (3.175) 826 (2.349)
Other comprehensive income (70.673) 18.375  (52.298) 48.305 (9.785) 38.520

28 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by divitlegnet profit attributable to shareholders by wesghted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding gltiniea year.

As at
31 December 201 31 December 201
Earnings per share attributable to the Company Shagholders

(expressed in Euro per share): (1,03) (0,96)
Net income attributable to ordinary shat

(Euro in thousands) (313.550) (293.630)
Average number of ordinary shares outstar 305.635.18 305.635.18

Diluted earnings per share were not materiallyed&ht from basic earnings per share.
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29 Dividends per share

The BOD approved a proposal to the AGM for theriiation of no dividend out of 2014 results. Theatd did
not approve a change in dividend policy overall ailtire-evaluate the payment of special dividends$nterim
dividends for 2015 during 2015.

30 Distribution of reserves

In line with L 4172/2013, all Greek companies ayecéd to either pay a lower one-off tax in resp#dax free

or partially taxed reserves before 31 December 201 have them taxed at the prevailing corpoiiateme

tax rate. As part of the financial statements fiaryear ended 31 December 2013, a provision fofulhamount

of taxes at 19% was recorded and this was apprbydte 2014 AGM. The EGM held on 15 December 2014
approved the one off tax and the distribution ef tiet amount of €0,21 per share (a total of €64am)l

31 Cash generated from operations

For the year ended

Note 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Profit before tax (426.795) (359.541)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant &
equipment and intangible assets 6,7 139.890 155.614
Grants amortisation 19 (2.277) (1.360)
Finance costs - net 25 173.251 164.692
Provisions for expenses and valuation charges 12.303 27.296
(Gains) / Losses from disposal of PPE (19) 1
Foreign exchange (gains) / losses 26 5.540 (1.871)
Dividend income (68.974) (17.122)
(167.081 (32.291

Changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 337.893 143.329
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other recewable (15.852) (226.861)
Increase in payables 536.310 199.626

858.35! 116.09:
Net cash generated from operating activities 691.270 83.803

Provisions for expenses and valuation changes 113 #tcluded impairment losses of €11 million reigtio the
write down of the Company’s investment in Artenktisllas S.A which had started liquidation proceedi(gge
note 8).

32 Contingencies and litigation

The Company has contingent liabilities in respddbank and other guarantees and other mattersguisithe
ordinary course of business. Provisions are sebyphe Company against such matters whenever deemed
necessary and included in provisions (Note 19)sé&lee as follows:
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Business Issues

@0

(ii)

Unresolved legal claimsThe Company is involved in a number of legal pestiegs and has various
unresolved claims pending arising in the ordinaowree of business. Based on currently available
information and the opinion of legal counsel, maragnt believes the final outcome will not have a
significant effect on the company’s operating resar financial position, over and above provisions
already reflected in the financial statements (N&tg

GuaranteesThe Company has provided letters of comfort arargptees in favour of banks as security
for loans granted by them to subsidiaries and #est®scof the Group, the outstanding amount of whigh
at 31 December 2014 was the equivalent of €1,#bi(31 December 2013: €885 million).

Taxation and Customs

(iii)

(iv)

Tax matters:in June 2011 the tax audits for the financial ge2002 - 2005 of Hellenic Petroleum S.A.
were finalized with disallowable expenses of €64iomi in total for four years. The Company agreed t
disallowable expenses of €32 million, resulting€t8 million of additional taxes and surcharges,oéll
which were included in Income Tax for the year eh@& December 2011. The remaining €32 million of
disallowable expenses assessed includes, amorgstothe assessment by a customs audit for alleged
inventory “shortages” (see note iv below) desplte tact that their tax audit did not reveal sudtkt
differences. The Company has appealed againstafisisssment on the ground that it has evidence to
demonstrate the lack of merit and the inaccuracthefcalculations. The appeal was heard before the
Administrative Appellate Court of Athens in Janu@®13. The decision rendered has sustained the
appeal with respect to the issues of “shortagesd donss from the production of BOPP film”
(disallowable expenses of €28 million) and rejected part of the appeal concerning the issue of
“amortization of Mining Rights” (disallowable expsss of €4 million). The Company has appealed
against the latter part of the above decision lgetbe Supreme Administrative Court (Conseil d’Etat)
Moreover the aforementioned tax audit also resutiediditional property taxes of a total amoun€af2
million, against which the Company has appealedreethe Administrative Courts. The hearing of the
appeal took place in April 2014. The decision rerdehas sustained the appeal with respect to the
property of former PETROLA and the property in Kaiori, rejected the appeal with respect to the
property in Kavala and has partially sustainedappeal with respect to the property in Aspropyrdms,
reducing the value of additional property taxes,icwhhad been determined by the tax audit by
approximately €1 million. The Company intends t@eq before the Supreme Administrative Court
(Conseil d’ Etat) with respect to the value of gweperty in Aspropyrgos. The final Court decisiantbe
issue of the special tax on “property used by wser” (approximately €0,3 million), is still pendjnNo
provision has been made in the interim financi&rimation as of 31 December 2014 with respect éo th
above, as the Company believes that the case evilhhlly assessed in its favour.

In February 2013 the tax audits for the financiahns 2006 to 2009 of Hellenic Petroleum S.A. were
finalized, the outcome of which resulted in disaiible expenses of €29 million in total for four y&a
against which €15,2 million approximately of adulithl taxes and surcharges were assessed. Moreover
the aforementioned tax audits also resulted intmaddil property taxes of a total amount of €6,4lionil.

The Company has accepted and settled part of thesssd amounts resulting in a payment of €8,7
million. The Company has appealed against the m@ngicases which were not accepted, paying €6,4
million (50% advance payment), as it believes thatcases will be finally assessed in its favour.

In 2014 the provisional tax audit for the years@@hd 2011 was completed for Hellenic Petroleum,S.A
regarding purchases from special tax regime camtiThe audit has resulted in additional taxes plus
surcharges of €6,5 million which were withheld aghithe company’s approved tax refunds. The
Company has followed the legal procedure and bedi¢lhat the case will be assessed in its favoueesi
all relevant purchases and transactions are withen ordinary course of business and follow the
applicable law provisions and international praetic

Assessment of customs and finkes2008, Customs authorities issued customs arek fassessments
amounting at approximately €40 million for allegestock shortages” in the bonded warehouses of
Aspropyrgos and Elefsina refineries for certairiqges during 2001-2005. The report has been chadigéng
by the Company as the alleged “stock shortageatedb accounting reconciliation differences caused
a result of early problems during the implementatiof the new customs authorities’ electronic-
monitoring system (ICIS) in 2001, and not becausphysical shortage of products. Both through the
Company’s workings, as well as by the work perfairbg independent auditors, it is confirmed beyond
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any reasonable doubt that there are no stock gfasrtand the books of the Company are in complete
agreement with official stock counts. Furthermaiétax audits relating to the same periods cominéo
same conclusion that no stock deficits were ididtif In relation with the above, the Company halyd
filed contestations before the Administrative CooftFirst Instance of Piraeus, for which no datés o
hearing have been assigned to date. Given thamémagement and the legal advisors’ position isttiet
case will have a positive outcome when the couarihgs take place, no provisions are made for such
liabilities.

However, contrary to a specific temporary courteoydhe Customs office withheld an amount of €54
million (full payment plus surcharges), an actigiaiast which has also been contested through lihg fi

of two Contestations before the Administrative Gswf Athens and Piraeus, challenging the actbef t
Tax Office and Customs Authority respectively. Themer Contestation has been heard on 22 May 2013
and Decision No. 3833/2013 has been rendered bydmainistrative Court of Athens, sustaining the
Company’s opposition by ruling that the withholdieffected by the Tax Office was done improperly and
against the law.

The Company considers that the latter contestatitirbe sustained by the Pireaus Court in lighttod
pertinent substantial reasons including amongsrsthhe fact that that subsequent customs awdithé
same installations have concluded that no stockiafes exist, as well as serious procedural argtemen
in the second case where Customs abused theirrattaowithhold refunds to the Company

In 2014, special consumption tax of €3,7 millionswassessed by the D’ Customs Office of Piraeus,
regarding internal consumption of oil products whigere not produced in the same installation. The
company has paid 50% of the amount, (€1,85 millitmix has appealed for the total amount before the
Administrative Court of Athens and believes that tlase will be assessed in its favour.

33 Commitments
(a) Capital commitments

Significant contractual commitments as of 31 Decen#tD14 amount to €45 million (31 December 2013:
€64 million), mainly relating to improvements irfireng assets.

(b) Operating lease commitments — Company as a lessee
The Company leases offices under non-cancellal#eatipng lease agreements.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments uhdsetnon-cancellable operating leases are as ®llow

For the year ended
31 December 201 31 December 201

No later than 1 ye 3.33( 4.15¢€
Later than 1 year and no later than 5y 13.90¢ 18.13:
Later than 5 yea 4.421 10.47¢
Total 21.660 32.762

(@) Letters of Credit

The Company may be requested to provide bank deti€rcredit to suppliers in order to obtain better
commercial and credit terms. To the extent thahsigns are already recorded as liabilities infthencial
statements there is no additional commitment talibelosed. In cases where the underlying tranmacti
occurs after the year end, the Company is notditdlsettle the letter of credit and hence no diaddility
exists as at the year end.

34 Related parties

Included in the statement of comprehensive incomee moceeds, costs and expenses, which arise from
transactions between the Company and related pa8ieh transactions mainly comprise of sales anchpses
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of goods and services in the ordinary course oiness and are conducted under normal trading aminacial

terms on an arm’s length basis.

Sales of goods and services to related parties
Group entities

Associates

Joint ventures

Total

For the year ende(
31 December 201 31 December 201

Purchases of goods and services from related partie

Group entities
Associates
Joint ventures

Total

2.839.225 3.036.227
801.068 524.731
125 238
3.640.418 3.561.196
58.728 53.614
824.470 556.370
511 509
883.709 610.493

Included in the statement of financial position daances which derive from sales/purchases of gy@od

services in the ordinary course of business.

Balances due to related parties
Group entities

Associates

Joint ventures

Total

Balances due from related parties
Group entities

Associates

Joint ventures

Total

As at
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

75.628 79.049
35.747 20.608
263 203
111.638 99.860
523.217 495.443
37.872 38.079
66 21
561.155 533.543

Group Entities include all companies consolidatedean the full method of consolidation. Also inclddare

Group companies consolidated with the equity metifazbnsolidation.
Transactions and balances with related partiegaespect of the following:
a) Hellenic Petroleum Group companies.

b) Associates and joint ventures of the Hellenic Retnm Group:

Athens Airport Fuel Pipeline Company S.A. (EAKAA)
Public Gas Corporation of Greece S.A. (DEPA)
Elpedison B.V.

Spata Aviation Fuel Company S.A. (SAFCO)

HELPE Thraki S.A.

Biodiesel S.A.
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e Superlube S.A.
e D.ME.P./OTSM

c) Parties which are under common control with the gamy due to the shareholding and control rights of
the Hellenic State:

e  Public Power Corporation Hellas S.A.
e Hellenic Armed Forces

During 2014, Company’s sales of goods and servioegovernment related entities amounted to €169
million (2013: €172 million) and Company’s purchas# goods and services to €43 million (2013: €55
million). As at 31 December 2014, the Company haota amount due from government related entitfes
€27 million (2013: €30 million) and a total amouhte to government related entities of €10 millig6x2:
€11 million).

d) Financial institutions (including their subsidiajewhich are under common control with the Company
due to the shareholding and control rights of tledigthic State.

¢ National Bank of Greece S.A.
e) Key management includes directors (executive anu esecutive members of the board of Hellenic

Petroleum S.A.) and members of the Executive CotemitThe compensation paid or payable to key
management for 2014 amounted to €4,4 million (2@&43million).

35 Events after the end of the reporting period
In January 2015, the Company signed a €200 mitkwolving credit agreement with a commercial bank.

In January 2015, the Company distributed the amofig0.21 per share, a total of € 64 million outitsftax-
free reserves, in accordance with law 4172/2018 Ksste 30).

There were no other material events after the énldeoreporting period and up to the date of puation of the
financial statements.
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